


The economic growth in India continued to remain 
slow. Demand was also impacted by inflation and 
high interest rates during the year under review. 
The global markets have  witnessed subdued 
growth due to uncertainties all around.

J.K. Fenner met this difficult business environment 
with all around improvements in productivity 
and customer centric initiatives. These measures 

coupled with introduction of new products helped in 
enhancing the market reach and in delivering better value 
to the customers. R&D efforts were further strengthened by 
upgrading product design capabilities. Belts and Oilseals 
developed by your Company found excellent customer 
acceptance, both in domestic as well as in global markets.

With its focus on technology and innovation, J.K. Fenner is fully 
poised to meet the challenges ahead and further consolidate 
its market leadership position.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all employees for 
their dedication, and I am sure, their commitment will help 
the Company in achieving its growth endeavours.

Raghupati Singhania
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The performance of market segments for  

J.K. Fenner’s products remain subdued on the back 

of continued slow down of the economy.  Despite this, 

the Company reported satisfactory performance, 

as it took several initiatives both on operational as 

well as marketing front.

A number of projects, to bring down power and 

fuel costs, as also, to improve productivity in the plants, were 

implemented.  With continued thrust on its R&D efforts,  the 

Company introduced various products, further strengthening 

its brand presence.

Marketing teams worked on enhancing the distribution network 

to improve its width and depth. They along with the logistics 

team improved the supply chain, especially in the aftermarket. 

Export teams have focused on offering a larger basket of 

products to global customers in specific geographies.

These initiatives along with young and dedicated work force 

at J.K. Fenner are well positioned to take forward the growth 

aspirations of the Company.

Vikrampati Singhania

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE
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TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual 

Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The turnover for the year under review was ` 566.08 

Crore. The Operating Profit was ` 120.99 Crore and 

Profit After Tax ̀  41.96 Crore, an increase of 9% over the 

previous year.

The new Government brought euphoria for growth in 

May, 2014 but the same seem to have faded away. 

Inspite of the Government having implemented a 

number of initiatives to improve the overall business 

climate, the industrial and automotive sectors that 

we operate in, have not seen any significant change. 

This is the 3rd year in a row that these sectors have 

shown virtually negative or no growth. Inspite of the 

Government taking steps to rejuvenate the economy it 

seems that it will take some more time before the effect 

of these could be seen.

There was an all-round improvement in operational 

efficiencies, optimal utilization of raw materials, power 

& fuel costs, and other cost compression efforts during 

the year gone by.

Despite the challenges of growth, your Company 

focused on increasing its reach and width into Tier-II and 

Tier-III towns as well as engaging with new customers 

across global markets. 

DIVIDEND 

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of  

` 10 per share, which together with the interim dividend 

of ` 25 per equity share aggregates to `35 per share 

(350%) for the year under review. The total outgo will be 

`10.44 Crore, (inclusive of Dividend Tax of ̀  1.75 Crore). 

APPROPRIATIONS

The amount available for appropriation including 

surplus from previous year is ̀  66.91 Crore. The Directors 

propose the following appropriation:

(` in Crore)

General Reserve 25.00

Dividend 8.69

Corporate Dividend Tax 1.75

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 31.47

66.91

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Mr. Sunil Kaul, Mr. Amal Verma and Mr. Nagaraju Srirama of 
J.K. Fenner (India) Ltd receiving the PMA award for 2013-14.
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OPERATIONS 

BELTS 

In the industrial belts 

business your Company 

continues to focus on 

working closely with 

its customers to help 

them achieve better 

operational efficiencies 

and energy savings. 

In its campaign of 

“Energy Earnings”,  

JK Fenner offers value 

added services to its 

customers by extending support through its application 

engineering solutions across the segments of steel, 

textile, paper, cement, heavy engineering, etc. Such 

efforts to reach out, further strengthened the Company’s 

leadership, as also helped it grow during the year inspite 

of adverse market conditions.

New inroads in the Agricultural segment were made 

by developing improved products for the tractor as 

well as harvester-combine applications. New belts 

developed by your Company have been approved 

by leading Multi-National OEMs and have also found 

good acceptance in the aftermarkets. This will add to 

the Company’s growth as the mechanisation in the 

agricultural segment picks-up. 

The automobile aftermarket remained flat. However, the 

Company continues to enhance its brand presence 

by reaching out to newer markets and increasing 

contacts with the mechanics. The Company has also 

implemented a new logistics solution that has improved 

delivery and reliability significantly.

OIL SEALS

The focus of the Company has been predominantly in 

the automobile segment, which unfortunately has not 

shown much improvement. However, emphasis was 

laid on enhancing customer satisfaction by modifying 

our delivery mechanism and improving turn-around 

times. Oil Seals plants have implemented “Lean 

Manufacturing” concept and have appropriately 

adjusted their processes to be able to service the 

customer faster. This has led to improvement in 

quality and higher reliability for the OE customers.  

The Research & Development team has also been 

working closely with the customers to develop new parts 

for both our existing as well as new customers.

The Company has also implemented a new 

product development methodology, which 

has helped to improve design and development                                                                                                                                    

times substantially. The success of the Railway Bearing 

Seals is such an example. The approval of this critical 

seal by one of the leading global OEMs as well as by 

Association of American Railroads Quality Assurance 

Program Certification has been a big achievement. This 

development has opened doors for the Company to 

start development programmes for a number of other 

global OEMs in the Railway segment. The Company 

continues to move-up the value chain in this business.

ENGINEERING PRODUCTS 

As is known, Aqua Culture business has grown in a big 

way in the coastal areas of our country. To capitalise 
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the export revenue 

by 9%. To continue 

its thrust over the 

next few years the 

Company has been 

investing in people, 

logistics and appro 

priate manufacturing 

capacity and capa- 

bilities. 

RESEARCH AND 

DEVELOPMENT 

JK Fenner has 

joined the New 

Product Development Cluster of ACMA on process  

improvement to introduce new products and ensure 

timely delivery at competitive costs to the customer. 

The Company continues to invest in appropriate 

hardware and software as required by demanding 

global customer standards.

on this opportunity, the Company has developed an 

Aerator Mechanism, which will help us add a new 

segment to our Engineering business.

While the Company continues to re-engineer and 

light-weight its gear products, its growth has been 

limited due to overall severe slow-down in the capital 

goods segment. The Company has also developed 

new products in the Air handling units and Roller 

table applications for the steel mills.

EXPORTS 

One of the thrusts for the year has been to expand its 

overseas customer base in order to realise growth. The 

Company has been focusing and working to develop 

products for large global OEMs across segments. 

One such example has been starting of a long term 

relationship with one of the leading global agricultural 

equipment manufacturers for whom the Company has 

started supplying belts. 

The Company has also started focusing on specific 

growth geographies, which has helped in increasing 
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The R&D teams are focusing on the entire value 

chain. Starting with new sources of raw material, 

process improvements and design optimisation 

for existing as well as new products to meet the 

changing needs of the global customers.

NON-CONVENTIONAL ENERGY DIVISION 

AND GREEN INITIATIVE 

While the power situation in the country continues to 

be un-dependable, the Company has been working 

on various projects to insulate itself from these 

uncertainties. The Company continues to produce 

a large part of its requirement via its captive Wind 

Mills and strengthening this by adding a dedicated 

feeder at the Madurai Plant.

The Company has also set up a biomass based 

boiler to reduce furnace oil usage for its steam 

requirement. Not only has it been cost effective but 

has also helped the environment by being greener. 

The Company has also commissioned a roof top 

solar power system at its Pashamailaram plant at 

Hyderabad adding to its green initiative.

HUMAN RESOURCE

People are the core asset of JK Fenner. As part of 

its growth agenda, it has been investing in creating 

internal leaders. The Company has been focusing in 

providing opportunities to key members across teams 

to learn and be part of the global environment. High 

performers are being sent to external management 

and technical development programmes at 

leading institutes to enhance their leadership 

qualities. The Company is part of “Krishna & Arjuna” 

initiative – an internationally acclaimed mentoring 

programme innovated by the JK Organisation. It 

helps build bonds between team members as well 

as provide guidance to the younger members. 

The Company strives to offer an open, supportive 

and high performance work environment, which 

led to improved employee satisfactions scores. 

During the year the Company also received the JK 

Organisation’s “Chairman’s People Management 

Award”. 

Engineering Product Division - Pashamailaram
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EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN  

An extract of the Annual Return as on 31st March 

2015 in the prescribed form MGT -9 is attached as 

Annexure ‘A’ to this Report and forms part of it. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND 
INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees, securities and 

investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013, are given in the financial 

statements. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year ended 31st March 2015, 

all the contracts or arrangements or transactions 

entered into by the Company with the Related 

Parties were in the ordinary course of business and 

on arm’s length basis and were in compliance with 

the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

Further, the Company has not entered into any 

contract or arrangement or transaction with the 

Related Parties which could be considered material. 

In view of the above, disclosure in FORM AOC-2 is 

not applicable.

DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board of Directors had 

proposed appointment of Shri Surendra Malhotra, as 

an Independent Director for a term of five consecutive 

years with effect from 6th May 2014 pursuant to Section 

149 of the Companies Act, 2013 at its meeting held on 

6th May 2014, which was approved by the Members 

of the Company at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

held on 28th August 2014.

The Board of Directors appointed Smt Mamta 

Singhania, as an Additional Director of the Company, 

liable to retire by rotation, pursuant to Section 161 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, effective 13th March 2015.  

Smt Mamta Singhania shall hold office till the 

conclusion of the forthcoming AGM and being 

eligible offers herself for re-appointment.   

The Board also appointed Shri Rahul Chandrakant  

Kirloskar as an Additional Director of the Company, liable  

to retire by rotation, pursuant to Section 161 of the  

Companies Act, 2013, effective 13th March 2015. 

The Board proposed the appointment of Shri Rahul 

Chandrakant Kirloskar as an Independent Director  

with effect from 13th March 2015, pursuant to 

Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Rules thereto, subject to the approval of Members of 

the Company in the forthcoming AGM.

With a view to broad base the Board of the Company,  

Shri Bakul Jain was appointed as an Additional 

Director of the Company, pursuant to Section 161 of 

Heavy Plant Auto Chemical weighing 
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the Companies Act, 2013 effective 11th May 2015.  

The Board also proposed appointment of Shri Bakul 

Jain as an Independent Director with effect from 

11th May 2015, subject to the approval of Members 

of the Company, pursuant to Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereto.

The Company has received from members notices 

in accordance with Section 160 of the Act proposing 

candidatures of Smt Mamta Singhania, for 

appointment as Director, liable to retire by rotation 

and of Shri Rahul Chandrakant Kirloskar and Shri 

Bakul Jain for appointment as Directors as aforesaid.

The Independent Directors have given the declarations 

that they meet the criteria of independence as 

laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies  

Act, 2013.

The Board also re-appointed Shri Vikrampati 

Singhania as Managing Director of the Company on 

the terms and conditions as recommended by the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee for a term 

of five years commencing 1st June 2015 subject 

to the approval of the Members in the forthcoming 

AGM.

Shri Harshpati Singhania retires by rotation and being 

eligible offers himself for re-appointment at the  

ensuing AGM.

Your Directors express their profound grief and sorrow 

on the sad demise of Shri L.R. Puri, Director. Late Shri 

Puri’s long association with the Company would 

always be remembered with love and regard for 

his amenable and pleasant disposition and as a 

knowledgeable resource in Finance, Company Law 

and General Management.  Your Directors pay their 

respectful homage and tribute to the noble departed 

soul. The Board records its deep appreciation for 

the valuable services rendered by Late Shri L.R. Puri 

during his tenure as Director of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ETC.

The details as required under Section 134(3)(m)  

read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

is annexed to this Report as Annexure ‘B’ and forms 

part of it. 

DEPOSITS 

Pursuant to the approval of members by means 

of Special Resolution dated 28th August 2014, the 

Company has continued to accept deposits from 

the public, in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. 

The particulars in respect of the Deposits covered 

under Chapter V of the said Act, for the financial 

year ended 31st March 2015 are

(a) Accepted during the year - ` 2.69 Crore; 

(b)  Remained unclaimed as atthe end of the year -  

` 0.40 Crore; 

(c) Default in repayment of deposits or payment of 

interest thereon at the beginning of the year and at 

the end of the year- NIL and

(d) Details of deposits which are not in compliance 

with the requirements of Chapter V of the Act - NIL.
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to ratification of the appointment by the Members 

at the respective AGMs to be held in 2015 and 

2016. Accordingly, being eligible, matter relating 

to appointment of the Auditors will be placed for 

ratification by members at the forthcoming Annual 

General Meeting. The observations of the Auditors 

in their report on Accounts and the Financial 

Statements, read with the relevant notes are self 

explanatory. 

(b) Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 

2014, the Board of Directors appointed R. Sridharan 

& Associates., a firm of Company Secretaries in 

Practice as Secretarial Auditors of the Company 

for the financial year 2014-15. The Report given by 

them for the said financial year in the prescribed 

format is annexed to this Report as Annexure ‘C’.  

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

(c ) Cost Auditor and Cost Audit Report

The Cost Audit for the financial year ended 31st 

March 2014 was conducted by M/s. S.Jagadeesan 

& Co., Cost Accountants, Chennai and as required 

Cost Audit Report was duly filed with Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, Government of India. The Audit of 

the cost accounts of the Company for the financial 

year ended 31st March 2015 is being conducted by 

the said firm and the Report will also be filed.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been 

prepared by the Company in accordance with 

the applicable Accounting Standards. The Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements together with 

Auditors’ Report form part of the Annual Report.

A report on the performance and financial position of 

each of the subsidiaries and associates included in 

the Consolidated Financial Statements is presented 

in a separate section in this Annual Report. Please 

refer AOC-1 annexed to the Financial Statements in 

the Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, 

the Company has placed the separate audited 

accounts of its subsidiaries in the website of the 

Company.

During the financial year under review, no company 

has become or ceased to be Company’s subsidiary 

or joint venture. With the coming into effect of the 

Companies Act, 2013, PSV Energy Pvt Ltd. and 

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. have become associates of 

the Company.

AUDITORS

(a) Statutory Auditors and their Report

M/s. S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, 

New Delhi have been appointed as Auditors of the 

Company to hold the office from the conclusion 

of the 21st Annual General Meeting held on 28th 

August 2014 until the conclusion of the 24th Annual 

General Meeting to be held in the Year 2017, subject 
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

Information in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 regarding 

remuneration is annexed to this Report. However, as 

per provisions of Section 136 of the said Act, the Report 

and Accounts are being sent to all the members of 

the Company and others entitled thereto, excluding 

the aforesaid information.  Any member interested in 

obtaining such particulars may write to the Company 

Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. 

The said information is available for inspection at the 

Registered Office of the Company during business 

hours.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Your Company has been one of the foremost 

proponents of inclusive growth and since inception, 

has been continuing to undertake projects for overall 

development and welfare of the society in the fields 

of environment, conservation of natural resources, 

health, education, rural development, etc.

The Company has framed Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) Policy in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 

made thereunder. The contents of the CSR Policy are 

disclosed on the website of the Company. 

The annual report on the CSR activities undertaken by 

the Company during the financial year under review, 

in the prescribed format is annexed to this Report as 

Annexure ‘D’.

Awards & Accolades

ICRQE 2014 Awards

Certificate of Achievement  
from Rane Madras Ltd.

Certificate of Excellence  
from Honda Motorcycles 

Certificate of Recognition  
from VST Tillers Tractors Ltd.

Six Sigma Awards 2014



11

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal 

controls with reference to financial statements and 

no material reportable weakness was observed 

in the system. Further, the Company has in place 

adequate internal financial controls commensurate 

with the size and nature of its operations. 

The Company also has robust Budgetary Control 

System and Management Information System (MIS) 

which are backbone of the Company for ensuring 

that your Company’s assets and interests are 

safeguarded.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS

During the financial year under review, there were 

no significant and material orders passed by the 

Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact 

the going concern status of the Company and its 

future operations.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board consists of 9 Directors as on 31st March 

2015, of which two are Executive Directors and seven 

are Non-Executive Directors (NED), out of  seven NED, 

two are Independent Directors (IND). Four Board 

Meetings were held during the twelve months period 

from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015 ie., on 6th 

May,2014, 8th August, 2014, 19th November,2014 

and 13th March,2015. Attendance and other details 

are as given below:-

Name of the Director Category Number of 
Board Meetings 
Attended

Dr. Raghupati Singhania, 
Chairman

NED 4

Shri HV Lodha NED 2

Shri Harshpati Singhania NED 2

Shri Rahul C. Kirloskar 
(w.e.f. 13.03.2015)

IND -

Smt Mamta Singhania 
(w.e.f. 13.03.2015)

NED -

Shri LR Puri (passed away 
on 06.04.2015)

NED 3

Shri Surendra Malhotra IND 4

Shri Vikrampati Singhania, 
Managing Director

Executive 4

Shri Nagaraju Srirama, 
President and Director

Executive 4

Shri Bakul Jain  
(w.e.f. 11.05.2015)

IND -

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company as a good governance measure has 

been having Audit Committee since beginning. The 

Board reconstituted the Audit Committee and revised 

the “Terms of Reference” of the Committee at the 

meeting held on 13th March 2015, in conformity with 

the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules thereto.

Presently, Committee comprises of Shri 

Bakul Jain, Chairman of the Committee, 

Shri Rahul Chandrakant Kirloskar and  

Shri Surendra Malhotra, all being Non-executive 

Independent Directors.
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Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held 

during the financial year ended 31st March 2015. 

i.e., on 6th May 2014, 8th August 2014 and 19th 

November 2014.

The names of the Members of the Committee and 

their Attendance are as follows:

Name of the Director Status
Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

Shri H V Lodha (ceased to be a 
member w.e.f. 13.03.2015)

Member 1

Shri LR Puri (passed away on 
06.04.2015)

Chairman 3

Shri Surendra Malhotra Member 3

Shri Rahul C.Kirloskar (w.e.f. 13.03.2015) Member -

Shri Bakul Jain (w.e.f. 11.05.2015) Chairman -

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules thereto, your Company has 

established a vigil mechanism for the directors 

and employees to report their genuine concerns 

or grievances relating to actual or suspected fraud, 

unethical behaviour, violation of the Company’s 

Code of Conduct or Ethics policy and any other 

event which would adversely affect the interest of 

the business of the Company. Whistle Blowers may 

send their concerns/complaints to the chairperson of 

the Audit Committee in a sealed envelope marked 

confidential, for appropriate action. The details 

of establishment of such Mechanism have been 

also disclosed on the website of the Company. It is 

affirmed that no personnel has been denied access 

to the Audit Committee. 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace 

Your Company is sensitive to women employees at 

workplace. As required under the Sexual Harassment 

of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has a formal 

policy to ensure safety of women and prevention 

of sexual harassment and has set up Internal 

Complaints Committee (ICC) at its work places to 

redress the complaints of women employees.

During the year, no complaint has been filed with 

ICC with allegation of Sexual Harassment.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

During the year under review, pursuant to Section 

178 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules 

thereto, the Board of Directors of the Company has 

constituted “Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee”, 

comprising of Shri Surendra Malhotra, Non-Executive 

Independent Director, Shri Nagaraju Srirama, 

President & Director and Shri V Rengaswamy, Sr. 

General Manager (Finance & Accounts).  Shri Surendra 

Malhotra has been appointed as the Chairman 

of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The 

Meeting of Stakeholders Committee was held on 

13.03.2015.

The names of the Members of the Committee and 

their attendance are as follows:

Name of the Director Status
Number of  
Meetings  
Attended

Shri Surendra Malhotra Chairman 1

Shri Nagaraju Srirama Member 1

Shri V. Rengaswamy Member 1



13

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has constituted “Nomination  

and Remuneration Committee”, comprising of  

Shri Harsh Pati Singhania, Non-Executive Non- 

Independent Director (Chairman of the  

Committee), Shri  Surendra  Malhotra,  Non- 

Executive Independent Director and  

Shri Rahul Chandrakant Kirloskar, Non- 

Executive  Independent  Director. The  compo- 

sition of the Committee is in conformity with  

the provisions of the Companies Act 2013. The  

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has  

formulated a policy relating to the appointment, 

remuneration and removal of Executive Direc-

tors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Senior  

Management Personnel of the Company. The 

policy is appended herewith as “Annexure E”. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the 

Companies Act ,2013, your Directors state that:

 a) in the preparation of annual accounts, the  

 applicable accounting standards have been  

 followed along with proper explanation relating to  

 material departures; 

b) the accounting policies have been selected 

and applied consistently and judgments and 

estimates made are reasonable and prudent 

so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

financial year and of the profit and loss of the 

Company for that period;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of 

the said Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the annual accounts have been prepared 

on a going concern basis; and

e) the proper systems to ensure compliance with 

the provisions of all applicable laws have been 

devised and that such systems were adequate 

and operating effectively. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company has an elaborate risk management 

system to inform Board Members about risk 

assessment and minimisation procedures. A Risk 

Management Committee headed by a Whole-time 

Director evaluates the efficacy of the framework 

relating to risk identification and its mitigation. Board 

Members are accordingly informed.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board places on record its appreciation of 

the valued services and dedicated efforts of the 

employees of the Company, as also the co-operation 

and support extended by Company’s bankers, 

customers, shareholders, dealers, vendors, various 

Government agencies and other stakeholders. 

On Behalf of the Board 

Place: New Delhi  Dr. Raghupati Singhania 

Date: 5th August 2015 Chairman
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Annexure-A to the Directors’ Report

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
1 CIN : U24231TN1992PLC062306
2 Registration Date : 09.04.1992
3 Name of the Company : J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED

[Formerly known as Fenner (India) Limited]
4 Address of the Registered office and contact details : 3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Kochadai, Madurai 625 016

E.mail: vijayaraghavan@jkfenner.com
Website: www.jkfennerindia.com
Tel No. 0452-4283826
Fax No. 0452-4283831

5 Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company
6 Whether listed company Yes / No : No
7 Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any. : NA

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description  of main products / 
services

NIC Code of the Product/ service %  to total turnover  
of the company

1 Endless Transmission Belts (V.Belts), Endless 
Synchronous Belts, Endless Flat Belt & Others

4010.31.90; 4010.32.90; 4010.33.90; 
4010.34.90; 4010.35.90; 4010.36.90; 
4010.39.91; 4010.39.99 

58%

2 Oilseals, Moulded Rubber Products and Rubber 
Compounds, Rubber Scrap

4016.93.20; 4016.93.30; 4016.99.90; 
4005.99.90; 4004.00.00

24%

3 Engineering Products & Services 7318.15.00; 8483.20.00; 8409.99.11; 
8483.50.00; 8483.50.10; 8483.50.90; 
8483.60.00  8483.60.10; 8483.90,00; 
7326.90.99; 4016.99.90; 8483.90.00; 
8483.40.00; 8409.99.11; 8482.10.90; 
8482.20.90 

15%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.No. NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE 
COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ 
ASSOCIATE

% of  shares held Applicable 
Section

1 BENGAL & ASSAM COMPANY 
LIMITED
3, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, 
New Delhi - 110 002

U67120DL1974PLC116830 HOLDING COMPANY 88.17% 2(46)

2 SOUTHERN SPINNERS AND 
PROCESSORS LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, 
Madurai 625 016

U17111TN2005PLC056558 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 100% 2(87)

3 MODERN COTTON YARN 
SPINNERS LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, 
Madurai 625 016

U17111TN2005PLC057274 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 100% 2(87)
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S.No. NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE 
COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ 
ASSOCIATE

% of  shares held Applicable 
Section

4 BMF INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Link House, 4th Floor,  
3 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,  
New Delhi 110 002

U67120DL2005PLC161088 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 100% 2(87)

5 ACORN ENGINEERING LIMITED
Delite Theatre Building, 2nd Floor, 
Asaf Ali Road,  
New Delhi 110 002

U74210DL1978PLC009175 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 100% 2(87)

6 DIVYASHREE COMPANY PRIVATE 
LIMITED
Link House,  
3 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,  
New Delhi 110 002

U10100DL2008PTC178373 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 61% 2(87)

7 DWARKESH ENERGY LIMITED
5, Park Street, M.I. Road, Opp. 
Coco Petrol Pump, Jaipur 301 011 
Rajasthan

U31200DL2005PLC278945 ASSOCIATE COMPANY 34% 2(6)

8 PSV ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Link House, 4th Floor,  
3 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,  
New Delhi 110002

U40300DL2013PTC258991 ASSOCIATE COMPANY 26% 2(6)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
during the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters 

(1) Indian

a. Individual/HUF - 80602 80602 3.246 - 80602 80602 3.246 -

b. Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c. State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -

d. Bodies Corp. 2189314 3796 2193110 88.323 2189314 3796 2193110 88.323 -

e. Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

f. Any Other…. - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (1):- 2189314 84398 2273712 91.569 2189314 84398 2273712 91.569 -

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

b) Other – Individuals - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corp. - 154200 154200 6.210 - 154200 154200 6.210 -

d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any Other…. - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (2):- - 154200 154200 6.210 - 154200 154200 6.210 -

Total shareholding of 
Promoter  (A) = (A)
(1)+(A)(2)

2189314 238598 2427912 97.779 2189314 238598 2427912 97.779 -

B. Public 
Shareholding

1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - - - -
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning  
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

   i) Indian - 13455 13455 0.542 - 13455 13455 0.542 -

  ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share 
capital upto `1 lakh - 21699 21699 0.874 - 21699 21699 0.874 -

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share   
capital in excess of 
`1 lakh - 20000 20000 0.805 - 20000 20000 0.805 -

c) Others -

(specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(2):- - 55154 55154 2.221 - 55154 55154 2.221 -

Total Public 
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

- 55154 55154 2.221 - 55154 55154 2.221 -

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 2189314 293752 2483066 100 2189314 293752 2483066 100 -

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters 
Sl 

No.
Shareholder’s 

Name
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change 

in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

1 Bengal 
& Assam 

Company  Ltd.

2189314 88.17 0 2189314 88.17 - -

Total 2189314 88.17 0 2189314 88.17 - -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1. At the beginning of the year

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Promoters Share holding 
during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment/ transfer / bonus/ 
sweat equity etc):

There is no change in the Promoter’s Shareholding 
during the FY 14-15.

3. At the End  of the year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten  Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

1 Mr.Yarlagadda Krishna Murthy (HUF) 20000 0.81 20000 0.81

2 KOR Investments Ltd. 13333 0.54 13333 0.54

3 Mr.Sunil K. Mittal (Jt.) Mrs.Kadambari S. Mittal 4033 0.16 4033 0.16

4 Mrs.Kadambari S. Mittal (Jt.) Mr.Sunil K. Mittal 3133 0.13 3133 0.13

5 Mrs.Pallavi Utsav Dhupelia 2666 0.11 2666 0.11

6 Mrs.Ulagammai (Jt.) Mr.M.A.A. Annamalai 1320 0.05 1320 0.05

7 Mr.Niraj Mittal (Jt.) Mr.Sunil K. Mittal 666 0.03 666 0.03

8 Mr.Gaura Daga 666 0.03 666 0.03

9 Mr.Lakshminarayanan R. 533 0.02 533 0.02

10 Mr.Vishwambhar Lal Danuka 501 0.02 501 0.02

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the  
Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares
% of total shares of 

the company
No. of shares

% of total shares of 
the company

1 Dr.Raghupati Singhania 20150 0.81 20150 0.81

2 Shri Harsh Pati Singhania 6715 0.27 6715 0.27

3 Shri Vikrampati Singhania 6715 0.27 6715 0.27

4 Shri Nagaraju Srirama 1 - 1 -

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(` in lacs)

Secured Loans  
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount  21,134.80  1,867.34  1,800.26  24,802.40 

ii) Interest due but not paid  -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due  -    1.59  -    1.59 

Total (i+ii+iii)  21,134.80  1,868.93  1,800.26  24,803.99 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

- Addition  2,569.36  4,991.74  298.25  7,859.35 

- Reduction  (6,673.52)  (2,153.71)  (569.30)  (9,396.53)

Net Change  (4,104.16)  2,838.03  (271.05)  (1,537.18)

Indebtedness  at the end  of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount  17,030.64  4,704.52  1,529.21  23,264.37 

ii) Interest due but not paid  -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due  -    2.44  -    2.44 

Total (i+ii+iii)  17,030.64  4,706.96  1,529.21  23,266.81 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (` in lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Directors
Total

amountManaging Director 
Mr.Vikrampati Singhania

Whole-time Director 
Mr.Nagaraju Srirama

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

143.50 113.67  257.17

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

3.78  1.09  4.87

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

-
-

-

2 Commission - as % of profit and Others  121.82 -  121.82

3 Others (mainly contribution to Provident and 
Superannuation Funds)

35.64 5.99 41.63

Total (A)  304.74  120.75  425.49 

Ceiling as per the Act (` in lacs) 609.49 (Being 10% of the net profits of the Company Calculated as per 
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

B. Remuneration to other directors: (` in lacs)

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
 Total 

AmountShri Surendra 
Malhotra

Shri Rahul Chandrakant 
Kirloskar

- -

1. Independent Directors 

·   Fee for attending board meetings 0.96 - 0.96

·   Fee for attending Committee meetings 0.79 - 0.79

·  Commission 0.50 - 0.50

Total (1) 2.25 - 2.25

2. Other Non-Executive Directors Dr.Raghupati 
Singhania 

Shri Harsh 
Pati 
Singhania

Smt 
Mamta 
Singhania

Shri  
L.R.Puri

Shri 
H.V.Lodha

 Total 
Amount

·   Fee for attending board meetings  0.96 0.36 - 0.66 0.36 2.34

·   Fee for attending Committee meetings  0.23 - - 0.66 0.03 0.92

·  Commission  39.50 19.50 - 0.50 0.50 60.00

Total (2)  40.69 19.86 - 1.82 0.89 63.26

Total (B)=(1+2)  42.94 19.86 - 1.82 0.89 65.51

Total Managerial Remuneration 491.00

Overall Ceiling as per the Act (` in lacs) 60.95 (Being 1% of the net profits of the Company Calculated as per Section 198 
of the Companies Act, 2013)

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder, KMP provisions are not applicable to the Company.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended 31st March 2015.
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Annexure B to the Directors’ Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company continues to invest in replacement of low energy efficient systems with effective and high efficient 
systems to conserve power and reduce costs. Periodic energy audits are conducted by external agencies to help 
identify areas of improvement and implement the recommendations. Installation of VFDs for motors and presses, 
power packs, replacement of motors & compressors are some such actions.

(i)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
(a)  Your Company has installed Solar Street Lights in Hyderabad Plant.
(b)  Your Company has replaced the existing tube lights with LED bulbs.
(c) Implemented Harmonic filter mechanism at Nilakottai plant.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:
(a) Your Company has taken steps to commission 30KW Roof Top Solar Panel in Hyderabad Plant.
(b) Your Company has used biomass as a source of fuel in the place of Furnace Oil in Madurai  
  Plant boiler.

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:  
 In total the company has spent ` 29.16 lacs on energy conservation.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:
 During the year under review, your Company has developed Cassette Seal for Agriculture Sector.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

 Due to introduction of Cassette Seals for Agricultural applications, your Company could derive the following benefits:- 
 (a) the life of the product has increased by 3 times of radial shaft seal;
 (b) improved the running time of the machine from 800 hrs to 2000 hrs in the field;
 (c) overall cost reduced by 50%;
 (d) Oil wastage has been reduced.

 Also, your Company has improved the aesthetic of agricultural belts which has been accepted by all the global  
 customers. Efforts are being made to implement this improvement for all the customers.

 Your Company has also made upgraded belts which facilitated enhancement in product life by 25%. 

 Your Company is working on various new projects to enhance customer satisfaction and these projects are  
 implemented in production in phased manner.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-

 (a) The details of technology imported-
  Your Company has not imported any technology for the past 3 years.

(b) The year of import - N.A
(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed - N.A
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof - N.A

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research & Development and Technology:
    i) Areas of R&D Activities

The Company has been continuously working on innovation for improving the value to the customers. R&D efforts 
have resulted in filing of Patent applications for “Green Cover V Belt” and for “Low Torque Railway Wheel Hub Bearing 
Seals” developed by the Company which also help in conserving energy costs for customers. The Company has also 
developed agri-belts for multiple applications which are environment friendly and provide better value to the customers.
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ii) Research & Development Expenses

The capital expenditure incurred on R&D during the year was ` 0.49 Crore and recurring expenditure amounted to 
`8.73 Crore, with the total expenditure of ` 9.22 Crore, 1.63% of the turnover.  

(C) EXPORTS, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
` in Crore

2014-15 2013-14
Earnings in Foreign Exchange 64.59 57.97
Foreign Exchange Outgo 59.07 58.34

Annexure C to the Directors’ Report

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
 
To The Members of J.K. Fenner (India) Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by J.K. Fenner (India) Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii)  Since the Company is an unlisted Public Company and hence the question of complying with the provisions of 

the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder does not arise;
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 

applicable of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v)  Since the Company is an unlisted Public Company, the provisions of the following Regulations (a to h) and 

Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992(‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable 
during the period under review:-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase  

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
f)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,    

  1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
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(vi) Other Applicable Laws –
a)  Factories Act;
b)  Labour laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company including  

those on contractual basis as relating to wages, gratuity, prevention of sexual harassment, dispute resolution  
welfare, provident fund, insurance, compensation etc.;

c)  Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1991;
d)  Acts relating to consumer protection including The Competition Act, 2002;
e)  Acts and Rules prescribed under prevention and control of pollution;
f)  Acts and Rules relating to Environmental protection and energy conservation;
g)  Acts and Rules relating to hazardous substances and chemicals; 
h)  Acts and Rules relating to Electricity, fire, petroleum, drugs, motor vehicles, explosives, Boilers etc.;
i)  Acts prescribed relating to mining activities;
j)  Acts relating to protection of IPR;
k)  The Information Technology Act, 2000.

With respect to Fiscal laws such as Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Professional Tax, Central Sales Tax & Local Sales Tax, 
based on the information & explanations provided by the management and officers of the Company and also 
on verification of reports of professionals including reports of Internal Audit, we report that adequate systems are in 
place to monitor and ensure compliance of fiscal laws as mentioned above.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  The Secretarial Standards on General and Board Meetings specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI) as prescribed under Section 118(10) of the Act are not applicable with effect from 01st July 2015. 
However, the Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 relating to Board Meetings and General Meetings which were 
issued by the ICSI as recommendatory in nature have been generally complied with.

(ii)  Since the Company is an unlisted Public Company and hence the question of complying with the provisions of 
the Listing Agreement(s) does not arise. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions are carried through with the consent of all the Board Members present and hence the question of 
recording the dissent of the members does not arise. However, the minutes of the General Meeting, the Members who 
voted aganist have been properly recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has obtained approval from the Members for the 
acceptance of Fixed deposits at the Annual General Meeting held on 28.08.2014.

        For R. SRIDHARAN & ASSOCIATES
       Company secretaries 

CS R.SRIDHARAN 
Place : Chennai  CP NO. 3239
Date: 01st August , 2015  FCS NO. 4775
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE COMPANY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR  
ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

1. Brief outline of Company’s CSR Policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and 
a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.

The Company has been one of the foremost proponents of inclusive growth and since inception, has been continuing 
to undertake projects for overall development and welfare of the society in the areas pertaining to promoting preventive 
healthcare, education, livelihood intervention, rural development, environment sustainability and conservation of natural 
resources, etc.

Now, as required under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has framed a CSR Policy. 
The details of the CSR Policy has been posted on the website of the Company and the web-link for the same is http://www.
jkfennerindia.com/companypolicy.aspx.

As mentioned above, various project/programs undertaken by the Company as per the CSR Policy are in the areas of 
heath care including sanitation, education including adult literacy and single teacher schools, etc.

2. The composition of the CSR Committee:
 Shri Vikrampati Singhania, Managing Director (Chairman of the Committee) - Non-Independent
 Shri Surendra Malhotra (Independent Director); and 
 Shri Nagaraju Srirama (President & Director) - Non-Independent
3. Average Net Profit of the company for last three financial years:    ` 4246.02 Lakhs
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item No. 3 above):      ` 84.92 Lakhs
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year:          ` 85.00 Lakhs
b. Amount unspent:            ` 52.67 Lakhs
c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Sl.No    CSR project or 
activity  
identified

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered
( Clause no. of 
Schedule VII of 
the Companies 
Act, 2013 as 
amended)

Projects or 
programs
(1) Local area 
or other     
(2) Specify 
the State and 
district where 
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

Amount outlay      
(budget) 
project or             
programs-wise

( ` in lakhs)

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programs 
Sub- heads:
(1) Direct 
expenditure 
on projects or 
programs
(2)Overheads:
(` in lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure up 
to the reporting 
period

( ` in lakhs)

Amount spent: 
Directly/through 
implementing 
agency

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

1 Health Camp 
/ Blood 
Donation 
Camp, 
Dental / 
Eye Camp, 
Donation of 
medicine to 
GKF Hospital

Clause no.(i)- 
Preventive health 
care  
and promotion of 
sanitation

Hyderabad- 
Telengana, 
Sriperumbudur, 
Madurai-  
Tamil Nadu. 1.00 0.92 0.92 Direct

2 Sanitation in 
schools

Hyderabad- 
Telengana, 
Sriperumbudur, 
Madurai -  
Tamil Nadu.

62.50 15.14 15.14 Direct

Annexure D to the Directors’ Report
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CSR project or 
activity  
identified

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered
( Clause no. of 
Schedule VII of 
the Companies 
Act, 2013 as 
amended)

Projects or 
programs
(1) Local area 
or other     
(2) Specify 
the State and 
district where 
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

Amount outlay      
(budget) 
project or             
programs-wise

( ` in lakhs)

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programs 
Sub- heads:
(1) Direct 
expenditure 
on projects or 
programs
(2)Overheads:
( ` in lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure up 
to the reporting 
period

( ` in lakhs)

Amount spent: 
Directly/through 
implementing 
agency

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

3 Adult Literacy 
Programmes

Clause no.(ii)- 
Promoting 
education

Hyderabad- 
Telengana, 
Sriperumbudur, 
Madurai-  
Tamil Nadu.

8.00 5.24 5.24 Direct

4 Single 
Teacher 
School

Sriperumbudur-
TamilNadu 5.00 5.40 5.40 NGO

5 Tree 
Plantation 
/ Donation 
of 50 tree 
guards to 
the Govt. HS 
School

Clause no.(iv)- 
Ensuring 
environmental 
sustainability, 
ecological 
balance

Madurai- 
TamilNadu

1.00 0.09 0.09 Direct

6 Illumination at 
Sri Meenakshi 
Amman 
Temple 
during Dasara 
Festival and 
Sponsorship
to other 
temples
Madurai 
Kamaraj 
University

Clause no.(v)- 
Protection of 
national heritage, 
art and culture 
including 
restoration of 
buildings and 
sites of historical 
importance 
and works of art; 
setting up public 
libraries.

Madurai- 
TamilNadu

2.50 2.52 2.52 Direct

7 Armed Forces 
flag day 
celebration

Clause no.(vi)- 
Measures for the 
benefit of armed 
forces veterans, 
war widows and 
their dependents.

Madurai-
TamilNadu

- 0.03 0.03 Direct

8 Contribution 
to National 
Relief Fund

Clause no.(viii)- 
Contribution 
to the Prime 
Minister’s National 
Relief Fund or any 
other fund set up 
by the Central 
Government

Contributed to 
Jammu and 
Kashmir Flood 
Victims.

5.00 2.99 2.99 Direct

Total 85.00 32.33 32.33

6. Reasons for not spending the 2% of the average net profit
Since identifying the Schools and initiating construction activities took some time, the Company could spend only to the 
extent of `15.14 Lakhs meant for construction of toilets for girl child for the year 2014-15 against the budget of ` 62.50 
Lakhs. The construction activities in all the Schools identified by the Company would be completed during 2015-16.  The 
Total money spent was `32.33 Lakhs against a budget of ` 85.00 Lakhs, due to delay in construction of toilets.

7.  The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR     
 Objectives and Policy of the Company. 

                   (Shri Nagaraju Srirama)   (Shri Vikrampati Singhania)  
Date : 05.08.2015                     President & Director      Chairman CSR Committee
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

In accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Company has put 

in place the Nomination and Remuneration 

Policy for the Directors and other employees of 

the Company including criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes, independence of 

a Director as well as a policy on Board diversity. The 

Policy provides as follows:

(i)  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

of Directors (the Committee) shall take 

into consideration the following criteria for 

recommending to the Board for appointment 

as a Director of the Company: 

(a) Qualifications & experience ; 

(b) Positive attributes like- respect for 

Company’s core values, professional 

integrity, strategic capability with business 

vision, etc ; 

(c) In case the proposed appointee is an 

Independent Director, he should fulfil the 

criteria for appointment as Independent 

Director as per the applicable laws & 

regulations; 

(d) The incumbent should not be disqualified 

for appointment as Director pursuant to the 

provisions of the Act or other applicable 

laws & regulations.

(ii)  The Committee will recommend to the Board 

appropriate compensation to the Executive 

Directors subject to the provisions of the Act, 

and other applicable laws & regulations. 

The Committee shall periodically review the 

compensation of such Directors in relation 

to other comparable companies and other 

factors, the Committee deems appropriate. 

Proposed changes, if any, in the compensation 

of such Directors shall be reviewed by the 

Committee subject to approval of the Board.

(iii) The Board will review the performance of a 

Director as per the structure of performance 

evaluation adopted by the Board of Directors 

including Executive Directors.

(iv) The Committee will review from time to 

time Board diversity to bring in professional 

performance in different areas of operations, 

transparency, corporate governance, 

financial management, risk assessment & 

mitigation strategy and human resource 

management in the Company. The Company 

will keep succession planning and board 

diversity in mind in recommending any new 

name of Director for appointment to the 

Board. It will be Committee’s endeavour to 

have atleast one Director from the following 

fields;

(a) Accounting and Corporate Finance;

(b) Legal and Corporate Laws; 

(c) Business, Management and Corporate Strategy.

(v) The eligibility criteria for appointment of Key 

Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other senior 

management personnel shall vary for different 

positions depending upon the job description of 

the relevant position.  In particular, the position 

of KMPs shall be filled by senior personnel 

having relevant qualifications and experience. 

The Compensation structure for KMPs and 

other senior management personnel shall be 

as per Company’s remuneration structure 

taking into account factors such as level of 

experience, qualification and suitability which 

shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, 

retain and motivate them. The remuneration 

would be linked to appropriate performance 

benchmarks. The remuneration may consist 

of fixed and incentive pay reflecting short 

and long-term performance objectives 

appropriate to the working of the Company 

and its goals.

Annexure-E to the Directors’ Report



25

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF J. K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED

Report On the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone 

financial statements of J.K. Fenner (India) Limited (“the 

Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at  

31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and 

Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent, and design,implementation, 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on whether the Company has in place an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the standalone 

financial statements give the information required by the 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 

at 31st March, 2015, its profit and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2015 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

 2) As required by section 143(3)of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;
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 (b) In our opinion proper books of account, as required  
 by law, have been kept by the Company so far  
 as appears from our examination of those books;

 (c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss  
 and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report  
 are in agreement with the books of account; 

 (d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial  
 statements comply with the Accounting Standards  
 specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with   
 Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2015 and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act; and

 (f) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

   i) The Company has disclosed the impact  
   of pending litigations on its financial position in its  
   financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the  
   financial statements;

   ii) The Company did not have any long-term  
   contracts including derivative contracts for  
   which there were any material foreseeable  
   losses; and

   iii) There has been no delay in transferring  
   amounts, required to be transferred, to the  
   Investor Education and Protection Fund by the  
   Company.

For S.S.Kothari Mehta & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Regn. No. 000756N

 Arun K. Tulsian 
Place: New Delhi Partner 
Date:  13th May 2015 Membership No. 89907

 
ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 of report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory requirements paragraph of our report 
on the financial statement of even date.

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper  
  records showing full particulars including  
  quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

 (b) The fixed assets are physically verified by 
the management according to a phased 
programme designed to cover all the items 
over a period of three years, which in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the 
fixed assets has been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

2. (a) The inventories of the Company have been 
physically verified by the management during 
the year.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the procedures 
of physical verification of inventories followed 
by the management are reasonable and 
adequate in relation to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is maintaining proper records 
of inventories. As explained to us, the 
discrepancies noticed on verification between 
the physical stocks and the book records were 
not material and have been properly dealt with 
in the books of account.

3.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 
189 of the Act. Accordingly, clauses 3 (iii) (a) and (b) 
of the Order are not applicable.

4.  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there seems to be adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business for the 
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the 
sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis 
of our examination of the books and records of 
the Company carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we have neither come across nor have 
been informed of any instance of a continuing 
failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid 
internal control system.

5.  In our opinion and according to explanations given 
to us, the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other 
provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder 
have been complied with in respect of fixed deposits 
accepted from the public.
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 6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
relating to materials, labour and other items of cost 
maintained by the Company as specified by the 
Central Government of India under section 148(1) of 
the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made 
and maintained. We are not, however, reqUired to 
make a detailed examination of such records.

7. (a)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company 
is generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales 
tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, value added tax, cess and other 
material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities. Further, there were 
no undisputed amounts outstanding at the 
yearend for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable.

 (b)     According to the information and explanations given 
to us and as per the books and records examined 
by us, there are no dues of Wealth Tax, Customs 
Duty and Cess which have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute, except the following 
in respect of disputed Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Excise Duty and Service Tax along with the forum 
where dispute is pending:

Name of 
Statute

Nature of 
Dues

Amount 
(Rs.in 
Lacs)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where 
the dispute is 

pending

Central 
Excise 
Act, 1944

Excise 
Dutyt

58.88 1996 – 97, 1998-
99 to 2001 – 
2002, April to 
December, 

2002, 2003–04 
and 2005–06

Commissioner 
Appeals

Finance 
Act, 1994

Service 
Tax

34.79 2006-07 to May 
2012 & March 
2008 to Aug 

2012

CESTAT

Central 
Sales 
Tax Act 
& Sales 
Tax Act of 
Various 
States

Sales Tax 38.15 1992 – 93 to 
2005 – 06

Commercial Tax 
officer

Sales Tax 183.69 2000 – 01 to 
2007 – 08

Dy. And Asst. 
Commissioner 

(Appeals)

Sales Tax 238.99 1991 – 92 to 
2004 – 05

Sales Tax 
Tribunal

Sales Tax 126.98 1991 – 92 to 
2004 – 05

Sales Tax 
Tribunal

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

333.57 Assessment 
Year 2012-12

Commissioner 
of Income Tax 

(Appeals)

(C).  The Company has transferred the amount 
 required tobe transferred to investor education  
 and protection fund in accordance with the  
 relevant vprovisions of the Companies Act, 1956  
 (1 of 1956) and Rulesmade thereunder within  
 time, as applicable

8.  The Company does not have any accumulated 
losses as at the end of the financial year. The Com-
pany has not incurred any cash losses during the fi-
nancial year covered by our audit and in the imme-
diately preceding financial year.

9. According to the records of the Company examined 
by us and the information and explanations given to 
us, in our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of its dues to banks and financial institution. 
The Company does not have any debentures .

10. As per the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records, the 
Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 
by others from banks or financial institutions

11. As per the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records, 
in our opinion, the term loans taken by the Company 
have been applied for the purpose for which they were 
obtained, where such end use has been stipulated by 
the lender(s).

12 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in 
India, we have neither come across any instances 
of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of such 
case by the management.

For  S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 000756N

 Arun K. Tulsian 
Place: New Delhi Partner 
Date:  13th May 2015 Membership No. 089907



28

J.K. Fenner (India) Ltd. 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015

` in lacs

Note No.
As at 

31.03.2015
As at 

31.03.2014 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds

Share capital 2  248.31  248.31 
Reserves and surplus 3  37,908.26  35,098.63 

 38,156.57  35,346.94 
Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term borrowings 4  9,274.84  12,729.46 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5  1,796.06  2,223.22 
Other long term liabilities 6  10,570.82  11,342.11 
Long term provisions 7  138.17  117.55 

 21,779.89  26,412.34 
Current Liabilities

Short-term borrowings 8  9,773.71  7,230.34 
Trade payables 9  7,073.71  5,693.89 
Other current liabilities 10  8,454.39  8,997.93 
Short-term provisions 11  409.57  486.90 

 25,711.38  22,409.06 
Total  85,647.84  84,168.34 

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Fixed assets 12
     Tangible assets  27,135.30  29,099.54 
     Intangible assets  221.19  233.69 
     Capital work-in-progress  938.52  174.14 
     Intangible assets under development  0.86  4.30 

 28,295.87  29,511.67 
Non-current investments 13  34,107.11  34,007.11 
Long term loans and advances 14  1,662.79  831.65 
Other non-current assets  1,135.91  1,076.87 

 65,201.68  65,427.30 
Current assets

Inventories 15  4,046.55  3,301.54 
Trade receivables 16  11,600.52  10,346.62 
Cash and Bank Balances 17  560.52  517.68 
Short-term loans and advances 18  4,220.91  4,533.73 
Other current assets 19  17.66  41.47 

 20,446.16  18,741.04 
Total  85,647.84  84,168.34 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

 
 RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

 ` in lacs

Note No 2014-15 2013-14

 REVENUE:

Revenue from operations (Gross) 20  56,607.64  55,573.52 

Less:Excise duty  5,420.37  5,382.39 

Revenue from operations (Net)  51,187.27  50,191.13 

Other income 21  2,581.19  3,064.46 

Total Revenue (I)  53,768.46  53,255.59 

EXPENSES:

Cost of materials consumed 22  19,300.08  18,902.23 

Purchase of stock-in-trade  3,426.88  3,559.32 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories of finished goods,  
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 23  (362.49)  114.59 

Employee benefit expenses 24  7,866.59  7,657.97 

Other expenses 25  11,438.14  11,089.51 

Total Expenses (II)  41,669.20  41,323.62 

Profit before interest & depreciation (I-II)  12,099.26  11,931.97 

Finance costs 26  3,638.99  3,832.06 

Profit before depreciation  8,460.27  8,099.91 

Depreciation and amortization expense 27  3,040.76  2,910.90 

Profit before tax  5,419.51  5,189.01 

Tax expense:

Current tax  1,374.90  1,004.00 

Add: MAT credit entitlement [ Charge / (Credit) ]  129.22  490.64 

Deferred tax 5  (280.38)  (165.86)

Profit after tax  4,195.77  3,860.23 

Basic / Diluted Earnings per equity share  
(Nominal Value per share ` 10 (2013-14   ` 10)

Cash ` 280.14 ` 266.01 

After Tax ` 168.98 ` 155.46 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

 
 RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 a.  The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention (except for certain 
fixed assets which were revalued) on accrual basis in compliance with applicable Accounting 
Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 b.  Fixed Assets are stated at cost adjusted by revaluation of certain assets and Fixed Assets held for 
disposal are stated at realisable value.

 c. The carrying amount of Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to assess impairment, if  
    any based on internal and external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying  
    value of asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net selling price.  
    An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in  
    which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting 
    period is reversed if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount.

 d  Assets leased out under Operating Leases are capitalised. Rental income is recognised  on the 
basis of lease agreement.

 e.  Intangible assets are recognised if future economic benefits are likely and cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is allocated on a systematic 
basis over the useful life of the asset.

 f. Specialised software is amortised over a period of five years from the year of installation.

 g.  Expenditure during construction / erection period is included under capital work in progress and 
is allocated to the respective fixed assets on completion of construction / erection.

 h.  Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided using Straight Line Method over their useful 
lives and in the manner prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. However, in 
respect of certain assets, depreciation is provided as per their useful lives as assessed in chartered 
engineer’s valuation report for plant and machinery of one of the Company’s plants. Lease hold 
land is amortised over the lease period. Depreciation on the increased amount of asset due to 
revaluation is computed on the basis of residual life of the assets as estimated by the valuer on 
straight line method.

 i.  Long Term Investments are stated at cost and current investments at lower of cost or fair 
market value. Diminution in value of long term investments is accounted for if the decline is 
other than temporary.

 j.  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is computed on 
weighted average basis. Finished Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and 
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

 k. Employee Benefits :     

 (i) Defined Contribution Plan

  Employee benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund (PF) and ESI are 
considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds are due.

 (ii) Defined Benefit Plan

  Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity and long term compensated absences (Leave 
Encashment) are considered as defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet.

 (iii)  Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related service is rendered. 
Actuarial gain / loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Notes to financial statements
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 l.  Transactions denominated in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate on the 
date of transactions. Outstanding Monetary Assets and Liabilities related to foreign currency 
transactions are translated at exchange rate prevailing at the end of the year and all exchange 
gains/ losses adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non monetary foreign currency items 
are stated at cost. Premium in respect of forward contracts is recognised over the life of contract. 
Gain or loss arising on remeasuring derivative instruments identified as effective fair value hedges 
and ineffective cash flow hedges is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 m.  Revenue expenditure on Research & Development is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss and 
capital expenditure is added to Fixed Assets.

 n.  Borrowing cost is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss except cost of borrowing for acquisition of 
qualifying assets which is capitalised till the date of commercial use of the asset.

 o. Export incentives and benefits are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 p.  Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the current year as 
per provisions of IncomeTax Act 1961. Deferred Tax is recognised for timing differences. However, 
Deferred Tax Asset is recognized on the basis of reasonable / virtual certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which the same can be realised.

 q.  Inter-unit transfer of goods for captive consumption are included in respective heads of accounts 
to reflect the true working. Any unrealised profits on unsold stock is not considered for valuing the 
inventory. This has no impact on the profitability.

  r. Government grants of incentives/subsidy are credited to Capital Reserve account.

  s.  Provision in respect of present obligation arising out of past events are made in Accounts when 
reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent Liabilities (if material) 
are disclosed by way of Notes to Accounts. Contingent Assets are not recognised or disclosed in 
Financial Statements and are included, if any, in the Directors’ Report.
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SHARE CAPITAL 

 
 As at 

31.03.2015

` in lacs 
As at 

31.03.2014

Authorised:
8,00,00,000 (Previous year 8,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each  8,000.00  8,000.00 

   10,00,000 (Previous year 10,00,000) preference shares of ` 100/-each  1,000.00  1,000.00 

 9,000.00  9,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid (Equity Shares with equal rights)

24,83,066 (Previous year 24,83,066) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  248.31  248.31 

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year  24,83,066  24,83,066 

Additions during the year  -    -   

Deletions during the year  -    -   

Shares outstanding as at the end of the year  24,83,066  24,83,066 

b) Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Bengal & Assam Company Limited - Holding Company  21,89,314  21,89,314 

Henry F. Cockill & Sons Ltd, U.K.  1,54,200  1,54,200 

c) Aggregate number of Equity shares allotted to shareholders as fully paid up  
pursuant to Scheme of amalgamation without payment being received in cash  
on 7th November 2007.

 
23,13,000 

 
23,13,000 

Above includes shares allotted to holding company  20,97,522  20,97,522 

Notes to financial statements
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 Non - Current Current *

4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
 As at  

31.03.2015 
 As at  

31.03.2014 
 As at  

31.03.2015 
 As at  

31.03.2014 
SECURED

Term Loans

Banks  8,023.75  7,388.75  1,865.00  2,830.00 

Financial Institutions  500.00  4,100.00  1,600.00  1,600.00 
 8,523.75  11,488.75  3,465.00  4,430.00 

UNSECURED
Fixed Deposits  751.09  1,240.71  750.82  412.60 

 751.09  1,240.71  750.82  412.60 
Less :  Amount disclosed under the head  

"Other Current Liabilities" (Note 10)  -    -    (4,215.82)  (4,842.60)

 9,274.84  12,729.46  -    -   

 * Payable during next 12 months

` in lacs

 As at 
31.03.2015

As at 
31.03.2014

3  RESERVES AND SURPLUS 
a)  Capital Reserve  343.18  343.18 
b)  Capital Redemption Reserve  77.10  77.10 
c)  Securities Premium Reserve  140.00  140.00 
d)  Revaluation Reserve
   Balance as at the beginning of the year  934.79  981.93 
   Less : Amount transferred (i)  57.33  47.14 
   Balance as at the end of the year  877.46  934.79 
e)  General Reserve
   Balance as at the beginning of the year  31,108.30  28,608.30 
   Less : Unamortised carrying value of fixed assets at the end of useful life adjusted  (ii) 285.06 -
   Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  2,500.00  2,500.00 
   Balance as at the end of the year  33,323.24  31,108.30 
f)   Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  3,147.28  2,495.26 
   Total Reserves & Surplus   (a to f)  37,908.26  35,098.63 

   Details of Surplus in Profit and Loss Account
   Balance as at the beginning of the year  2,495.26  2,131.27 
   Profit for the year  4,195.77  3,860.23 

 6,691.03  5,991.50 
Less: Appropriations
Interim dividend paid  620.77  496.61 
Proposed final dividend  248.31  372.46 
 Corporate Dividend tax (Net of ` Nil - Previous year ` 20.53 lacs credit availed on 
payment made by wholly owned subsidiary company)  174.67  127.17 
Transfer to General Reserve  2,500.00  2,500.00 

 3,147.28  2,495.26 

(i)Transfer to Profit and Loss Statement ` 48.31 lacs (Previous year ` 44.79 lacs) towards additional depreciation arising out of  
revaluation of Fixed Assets,  ̀   2.23 lacs (Previous year ̀   2.35 lacs) towards assets sold / written off  and ̀  6.79 lacs written off in respect  
of assets whose residual life has become zero in line with adjustment made in the carrrying amount on the basis of historical 
cost.

(ii)A sum of `  285.06 lacs adjusted to General Reserve pursuant to adoption of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 towards  
written down value in respect of certain fixed assets net of deferred tax of `146.78 lacs whose lives had expired on  
31st March 2014.
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1  Term loan Nil (Previous year ` 340.00 lacs) from a bank secured by way of first charge on certain assets including 
equitable mortgage of  specified immovable assets of the company. 

2 Term loan of ` 1320.00 lacs ( Previous year ` 1760.00 laces) from a bank secured by way of first charge on certain 
assets including equitable mortgage of specified immovable assets of the company, is repayable in 12 equal 
quarterly instalments.

3  Term loan of  ` 1718.75 lacs (Previous year `  2343.75 lacs )  from a bank secured by way of first charge on 
certain specified assets including equitable mortgage of  specified immovable assets of the company 
and  paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of the company along with the banks extending 
working capital facilities, is repayable in 11 equal quarterly instalments.

4  Term loan of `  4350.00 lacs (Previous Year  `  5150.00 lacs) from a bank secured by way of first and exclusive 
charge by way of hypothecation of assets acquired /  to be acquired out of the bank loan, is repayable in  
21 equal quarterly instalments and balance amount of ` 150.00 lacs as last instalment (i.e 22nd instalment).

5  Term loan Nil (Previous Year ` 625.00 Lacs)   from a bank secured by way of subservient charge on the movable fixed 
assets of the company both present & future. 

6  Term loan of  `  2100.00 lacs (Previous Year `  5700.00 lacs)  from a financial institution secured by way of pledge of 
shares of  a body corporate, is repayable in 5 equal quarterly instalments and balance  amount of ` 100.00 lacs as 
last instalment (i.e 6th instalment).

7  Term loan of ̀  2500.00 lacs (Previous Year Nil) from a bank secured by way of subservient charge on the entire movable 
assets of the company.

8 Fixed Deposit of ` 500.69  lacs  and ` 235.60 lacs aggregating to ` 736.29 lacs  are due for repayment in 2016-17 and 
2017-18 respectively.

` in lacs
As at  

31.03.2015 
 As at  

31.03.2014

5 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
    Related to Fixed Assets (Refer Note 3 (ii))  1,925.39  2,335.25 

Deferred Tax Assets 
    Expenses / Provisions Allowable  129.33  112.03 

 1,796.06  2,223.22 

6 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
Trade Deposits  1,177.49  1,167.51 

Deferred Payment Liabilities (Refer Note 35)  8,485.68  9,339.43 

Others  907.65  835.17 

 10,570.82  11,342.11 

7 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision for employee benefits  138.17  117.55 

8 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 
SECURED
  Working Capital Borrowings from Banks  5,041.89  5,216.05 

UNSECURED
  From Banks  4,704.52  1,867.34 

  Fixed Deposits  27.30  146.95 

 9,773.71  7,230.34 
a)  Working Capital borrowings from banks is secured by hypothecation and by first charge on Stocks and Book debts, etc., 

both present & future and by second charge on the immovable assets of the Company, on pari passu basis with other 
Banks and Buyer’s credit Nil (Previous year ` 243.52 lacs) is secured by subservient charge on current assets.

b) Unsecured loans from banks include Buyer’s Credit outstanding ` 1304.52 lacs. (Previous year ` 368.28 lacs)
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` in lacs

As at  
31.03.2015 

As at  
31.03.2014

9 TRADE PAYABLES
Payable to Subsidiary Companies  196.41  140.16 
Other payables (Refer Note 34)  6,877.30  5,553.73 

  7,073.71  5,693.89 

10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
CURRENT MATURITIES OF LONG TERM DEBTS

SECURED
Term Loan from Banks  1,865.00  2,830.00 
Financial Institutions  1,600.00  1,600.00 

UNSECURED
Fixed Deposits  750.82  412.60 

 4,215.82  4,842.60 

OTHERS
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  2.44  1.59 
Interest accrued and due on deposits  12.51  11.60 
Rent Advance  93.33  93.33 
Unclaimed dividend #  24.04  16.04 
Unclaimed fixed deposits and interest accrued thereon #  54.42  57.37 
Other payables - Capital payables  118.32  44.24 

   Employees  979.87  950.04 
   Deferred Payment Liabilities (Refer Note 35)  853.75  800.76 
   Statutory dues  433.67  401.70 
   Others  1,666.22  1,778.66 

 4,238.57  4,155.33 

 8,454.39  8,997.93 

 # Investor Education & Protection Fund will be credited as and when due. 

11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity  91.20  34.05 
Leave encashment  19.51  17.09 
Other Provisions - Equity dividend 248.31  372.46

Corporate tax on dividend 50.55 63.30 

 409.57  486.90 

12 FIXED ASSETS

Assets
Gross Value Depreciation / Lease Amortisation Net Value

As at Additions Sales / As at Up to For the Deletions/ Up to As at As at
1-4-2014 Adjustments 31-3-2015 31-3-2014 year** Adjustments 31-3-2015 31-3-2015 31-3-2014

Tangible Assets
Land- Freehold 2,596.85  -  - 2,596.85  -  - -  -  2,596.85 2,596.85

 Leasehold  132.60  -    -    132.60  10.37  1.32  -    11.69  120.91  122.23 
Buildings  5,000.67  217.97  4.42  5,214.22  1,188.33  311.85  1.15  1,499.03  3,715.19  3,812.34 
Plant and Equipment*  35,828.08  1,106.56  333.60  36,601.04  14,172.96  2,774.40  272.24  16,675.12  19,925.92  21,655.12 

Furniture and Fixtures  908.63  55.82  20.36  944.09  462.28  178.46  11.77  628.97  315.12  446.35 

Vehicles  297.43  59.97  43.74  313.66  98.87  46.91  25.05  120.73  192.93  198.56 

Office equipment  981.29  119.80  6.19  1,094.90  713.20  118.82  5.50  826.52  268.38  268.09 

 Total  45,745.55  1,560.12  408.31  46,897.36  16,646.01  3,431.76  315.71  19,762.06  27,135.30  29,099.54 

 Intangible Assets       
 Software  534.55  83.44  -    617.99  318.90  79.04  -    397.94  220.05  215.65 
 Trade Mark Licence  501.35  -    -    501.35  483.31  16.90  -    500.21  1.14  18.04 

 Total  1,035.90  83.44  -    1,119.34  802.21  95.94  -    898.15  221.19  233.69 

 Grand Total  46,781.45  1,643.56  408.31  48,016.70  17,448.22  3,527.70  315.71  20,660.21  27,356.49  29,333.23 

 Previous Year  45,700.59  1,334.45  253.59  46,781.45  14,684.06  2,955.69  191.53  17,448.22  29,333.23  31,016.53 

 *Includes certain equipments  ` 10200 lacs (Previous year  ` 10200 lacs) given on lease. (Refer Note 33).
 **Pursuant to adoption of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, the lives of certain assets had expired on 31st March 2014. The carrying amount of ` 438.63  
    lacs inclusive of  ` 6.79 lacs of upward revision on account of revaluation in respect of such fixed assets has been adjusted to Reserves.
a)  Land, buildings and plant & machinery transferred under the Scheme of Amalgamation during the year 2006-07 were revalued as at 31st August 1985 and as  
 at 31st March 1995. The revaluation in respect of factory, service buildings and plant and machinery was further updated as at 31st March 1998 based on  
 current replacement cost by a valuer and as a result, book value of the said assets had been increased by  ` 2990.53 lacs.
b)  Includes capitalisation of finance cost - Plant and Machinery  Nil (Previous year  ` 14.23 lacs).
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` in lacs

13 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Face Value (In `)
(Fully paid up)

 As at 31.03.2015  As at 31.03.2014

 Nos.  Value  Nos.  Value

Long Term, Other Investments (at cost)
 a) Investments in Equity Instruments

Quoted
Bodies Corporate

JK Paper Ltd. 10 2,54,57,500  12,460.85 2,54,57,500  12,460.85 

JK Lakshmi Cement Ltd. 5 1,02,59,400  5,001.46 1,02,59,400  5,001.46 

JK Tyre & Industries Ltd.* 2 1,80,00,000  3,600.00  36,00,000  3,600.00 

Unquoted
Bodies Corporate

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. 10  2,74,940  27.49  274,940  27.49 

CliniRx Research Pvt. Ltd. 10  10,00,000  100.00  10,00,000    100.00 

PSV Energy Pvt. Ltd 10  52,000 5.20  52,000 5.20

Subsidiary Companies
Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd. 10  50,50,000  2,055.00  50,50,000  2,055.00 

Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd. 10  30,50,000  1,555.00  30,50,000  1,555.00 

BMF Investments Ltd. 10  3,01,989  30.20  3,01,989  30.20 

Acorn Engineering Ltd. 10  50,500  5.05  50,500  5.05 

Divyashree Company Private Ltd. 10  7,123  8,016.70  7,123  8,016.70 

Others  -    -   

Madura Coats Workers'  Co-operative Stores Ltd. 1  15,790  0.16  15,790  0.16 

The Madurai District Pandian Consumers'  
Co-operative Wholesale  Stores Ltd. 'A' Class 
Share 50  1  -    1  -   

b) Investments in Preference Shares
Unquoted

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.(7% Optionally 
Convertible Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares, fully paid up) 100  11,00,000  1,100.00  10,00,000  1,000.00 

CliniRx Research Pvt. Ltd (8% Optionally 
Convertible Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares) 10  15,00,000  150.00  15,00,000  150.00 

 34,107.11  34,007.11 

Aggregate value of Quoted Investments  21,062.31  21,062.31 

Aggregate value of Unquoted Investments   13,044.80  12,944.80 

 34,107.11  34,007.11 

Market value of Quoted Investments  63,865.82  25,459.04 

*JK Tyre & Industries Limited split the Equity Shares of `10 each into 5 (five) Equity Shares of ` 2 each on 
19.12.2014, thus increasing the number of shares.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation, 2,09,589 Shares of Bengal & Assam Company Ltd (BACL) are 
held in the name of a Trustee on behalf of the Company, being Subsidiary of BACL against their holding in  
Netflier Finco Ltd. Accordingly, the amount against the said shares is shown under Long term loans and ad-
vances.
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` in lacs

 As at  
31.03.2015 

 As at  
31.03.2014

14  LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances  192.71  262.37 

MAT Credit entitlement  -    129.22 

Security deposits with Govt. Authorities & Others  1,470.08  440.06 

 1,662.79  831.65 

15  INVENTORIES 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Raw materials #  1,147.92  813.67 

Work-in-progress  462.21  296.59 

Finished goods  1,905.92  1,643.54 

Stock - in - Trade  344.87  356.77 

Stores and spares  185.63  190.97 

 4,046.55  3,301.54 

# Includes Raw materials in transit ` 187.74 lacs (Previous year ` 56.02 lacs) 

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES 
(Unsecured)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from  
the date they are due for payment

  

Considered Good  707.96  712.85 

Doubtful  30.37  25.35 

Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts  (30.37)  (25.35)

 Others (Considered good)  10,892.56  9,633.77 

 11,600.52 10,346.62 

17 CASH & BANK BALANCES 
Cash on hand  5.69  3.65 

Balances with banks

        Current accounts  379.13  324.21 

        Savings accounts  0.03  0.03 

        Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend  9.29  1.29 

        Fixed deposit account-Margin money 150.71 166.72

Others  15.67  21.78 

 560.52  517.68 

Unpaid dividend of ` 15.67 lacs (Previous year ` 14.75 lacs) kept in the form of fixed deposit with 
banks.

18 SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 
(Unsecured, considered good)

Loans & Advances to related parties  0.35  0.24 

Others

Balance with Excise & Sales tax authorities  2,112.19  1,826.53 

Export Benefit Receivable  109.89  154.02 

Advance Income-tax (Net of Provision ` 1095.17 lacs, Previous year ` 1003.76 lacs)  1,729.29  1,417.33 

Other advances  269.19  1,135.61 

 4,220.91  4,533.73 
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` in lacs

As at  
31.03.2015 

As at  
31.03.2014 

19 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

(Unsecured, considered good)

Excise Duty Receivable  -    12.00 

Other receivables  17.66  29.47 

 17.66  41.47 

20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2014-15 2013-14

Sale of Products and Services

V Belts  33,744.26  32,720.12 

Oilseals, Moulded Rubber Products & Rubber Compounds  13,767.33  13,732.35 

Engineering Products  and Services  8,654.91  8,676.13 

Wind Power  600.39  636.37 

 56,766.89  55,764.97 

Other operating revenues  273.87  259.19 

Revenue From Operations (Gross)  57,040.76  56,024.16 

Less: Inter Division Transfer  433.12  450.64 

 56,607.64  55,573.52 

21 OTHER INCOME 

Interest income from short-term deposits and loans  26.36  64.72 

Dividend income from long term investments  395.67  638.95 

Other non operating income

   Exchange Difference (Net)  13.52  -   

Lease Rent Received  2,041.60  2,054.14 

Others  104.04  306.65 

 2,581.19  3,064.46 

22 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Rubber  5,358.11  5,786.72 

Chemicals  3,729.93  3,613.90 

Cord / Fabric  3,846.04  3,325.60 

Components and Others  6,366.00  6,176.01 

  19,300.08  18,902.23 

% of Imported / Indigenous materials consumed 

Imported     -    (value)  5,429.97  5,341.44 

                             (%) 28.1% 28.3%

 Indigenous  -  (value)  13,870.11  13,560.79 

                            (%) 71.9% 71.7%

Raw materials consumed for the year has been determined after adjusting ` 2.49 lacs  (Previous year ` 41.52 lacs) 
accounted for on accrual basis in respect of estimated benefit on account of entitlement of import of raw materials 
under advance licence against exports made under Duty Exemption Scheme.
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` in lacs

 2014-15  2013-14 

23 (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Closing stock 

Finished goods  1,905.93  1,643.54 

Work in progress  462.21  296.59 

Stock-in-trade (Engineering and Other Miscellaneous Products)  344.87  356.77 
 2,713.01  2,296.90 

Opening stock 
Finished goods  1,643.54  1,640.96 

Work in progress  296.59  336.70 

Stock-in-trade (Engineering and Other Miscellaneous Products)  356.77  435.15 
 2,296.90  2,412.81 

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Stock  - (A)  (416.11)  115.91 
Differential Excise Duty on Increase /  Decrease of Finished Goods (B)  53.62  (1.32)
Total (Increase) / Decrease in Stock  (A + B)  (362.49)  114.59 

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 
Salary, Wages and Bonus  6,879.58  6,705.64 

Contribution to Provident and other funds  470.23  439.31 

Employees welfare expenses & Other Benefits  516.78  513.02 
 7,866.59  7,657.97 

25 OTHER EXPENSES 
Consumption of stores, packing and spare parts  2,480.41  2,220.71 

Power & Fuel  2,836.81  3,335.36 

Less : Inter Division Transfer  433.12  2,403.69  450.64  2,884.72 

Repairs to Buildings  182.50  76.02 

Repairs to Machinery  533.91  425.39 

Freight & Transportation  883.45  917.70 

Rent  248.22  217.96 

Insurance  110.98  130.78 

Rates & Taxes  216.51  183.77 

Travelling Expenses  1,248.73  1,218.54 

Exchange Difference (Net)  -    132.35 

Loss on Assets Sold / Scrapped (Net)  50.98  15.39 

Corporate Social Responsibility  32.33  -   

Miscellaneous Expenses  3,046.43  2,666.18 
 11,438.14  11,089.51 

a) Stores & spares consumed
 Imported   -  (value)  44.31  69.70 

                          (%) 1.79% 3.14%

 Indigenous -   (value)  2,436.10  2,151.01 

                       (%) 98.21% 96.86%

b) Miscellaneous Expenses include
(i) Payment to Auditors

Audit Fee  6.00  5.00 

Tax Audit Fee  0.75  0.50 

Other Services (Certification fees)  0.55  0.30 

Reimbursement of Expenses  2.40  2.48 
 9.70  8.28 

(ii) Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  15.54  36.10 
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` in lacs

2014-15 2013-14

26 FINANCE COST
Interest  3,559.74  3,321.35 

Other borrowing costs  55.19  34.55 

Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions  24.06  476.16 

 3,638.99 3,832.06 

27 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES 
Depreciation on tangible assets  2,996.02  2,820.90 

Amortization of intangible assets  93.05  134.79 

 3,089.07 2,955.69 

Less:Transfer from revaluation reserve  48.31  44.79 

 3,040.76 2,910.90 

28 Capital Commitments (Net of advances) ` 231.16 lacs (Previous year ` 425.05 lacs) and Other Commitments Nil 
(Previous year Nil ).

29 Contingent liabilities in respect of claims not accepted and not provided for ` 815.10 lacs (Previous year `1176.47 
lacs).Details thereof are, Excise duty matters in appeal ` 154.10 lacs, Service tax matters in appeal ` 49.96 lacs, 
Sales tax matters in appeal ` 480.76 lacs and other matters ` 130.28 lacs (Previous year ` 141.07 lacs, ` 43.56 lacs,  
` 527.71 lacs & ` 464.13 lacs respectively). In respect of certain disallowances and additions made by the Income tax 
Authorities, appeals are pending before the Appellate Authorities and adjustment, if any, will be made after the same 
are finally settled.

30  Research and Development expenses amounting to ` 873.13 lacs (Previous year ` 813.11 lacs) have been included 
in the respective revenue accounts.

31 Derivative Instruments and Unhedged foreign currency exposure
a)  Forward Contracts for hedging  Receivables ` 31.91 lacs - USD 0.50 lacs  (Previous year Nil - USD Nil) are  

outstanding as at 31.03.2015.

b)  Foreign currency exposure unhedged net receivable  ` 305.58 lacs - USD 4.91 lacs and  ` 302.79 lacs - Euro 4.53 lacs 
(Previous year ` 259.35 lacs - USD 4.37 lacs,  ` 189.31 lacs  - Euro 2.33 lacs and ` 11.80 lacs - GBP 0.12 lac) and net 
payable ` 10.30 lacs - GBP 0.11 lac  (Previous year  Nil).

32 Segment Information ` in lacs
i) Primary Segments - Business : 2014-15 2013-14
  Company operates in a single segment of Polymer.
ii) Secondary Segments - Geographical Segments :

Domestic Revenues  50,484.02  50,028.15 
Export Revenues  6,556.74  5,996.01 

 57,040.76  56,024.16 

33 The Company has given certain specified equipments to a related party on operating lease basis 
which is cancelable at the option of Lessee.

34 The details of amounts outstanding under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED 
Act) to the extent of information available with the Company are as under:

(i)  Principal & Interest amount due and remaining unpaid as at 31.03.2015  Nil (Previous year Nil)
(ii) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year  Nil  (Previous year Nil) and
(iii) Interest Accrued and unpaid as at 31.03.2015  Nil  (Previous year Nil)

35 Deferred Payment liabilities represent amount payable to a related party against certain equipments.

36 The Company has not provided diminution in the value of certain long term strategic investments, since in the 
opinion of the Board, such diminution in their value is temporary in nature, considering the inherent value, nature of 
investments, the investees’ assets and expected future cash flow from such investments.
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37 Employees' Benefits 
 ` in lacs

Defined Benefit Plan-Gratuity (Funded) and  Leave Encashment 
(Non-funded) -  As per Actuarial Valuation on 31.03.2015

Gratuity  
(Funded)

Leave Encashment  
(Non Funded)

A Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Current Service cost  78.61  74.41  32.49  30.66 

Interest Cost  49.54  54.51  6.77  8.62 

Expected return on Plan assets  (52.61)  (53.10)  -    -   

Net Actuarial [(Gain)/Loss]  15.66  (18.07)  83.63  1.15 

Past Service Cost  -    -    -    -   

Total expenses  91.20  57.75  122.89  40.43 

Actual return on planned assets  110.79  49.27  -    -   

B Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet:

Present Value of Obligation as at year end  734.36 706.25  157.68 134.64

Fair Value of plan assets as at year end  643.16  672.19  -    -   

Less Unrecognised past service cost  -    -    -    -   

Funded Status - Surplus /( Deficit)  (91.20) (34.06)  (157.68) (134.64)

Net Asset / (Liability) as at year end  (91.20) (34.06)  (157.68) (134.64)

C Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Opening defined benefit obligation  706.25 763.50  134.64 121.21

Interest Cost  49.54 54.51  6.77 8.62

Current Service Cost  78.61 74.41  32.49 30.66

Benefit paid out of funds (173.87) (164.27)  (99.85) (27.00)

Benefit paid by Company  -    -    -    -   

Past Service Cost  -    -    -    -   

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation  73.83  (21.90)  83.63 1.15 

Closing defined benefit obligation  734.36 706.25  157.68 134.64

D Change in the Fair value of Plan Assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets  672.19 655.20  -    -   

Expected return  52.61 53.10  -    -   

Contribution by employer  34.05 132.00  99.85 27.00

Benefit Paid (173.87) (164.28)  (99.85) (27.00)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on obligation  58.18 (3.83)  -    -   

Closing fair value of plan assets  643.16 672.19  -    -   

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair 
value of total plan assets are as follows:

Govt.Bonds  -    -   Not Not

Corporate Bonds  -    -   Applicable Applicable

Insurance Policy 99.96% 99.96%

Others 0.04% 0.04%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the 
Company's plans are shown below:-

Discount Rate 8% 8% 8% 8%

Expected rate of return on assets 8% 8%  -  - 

Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate

Salary Escalation 3%
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Amounts for the current and previous four periods in respect of Gratuity & Leave Encashment are as follows:-

` in lacs
Gratuity (Funded) 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
Defined benefit obligation  734.36  706.25  763.50  677.06  679.84 

Plan assets  643.16  672.19  655.20  569.30  559.49 

Surplus / (Deficit)  (91.20)  (34.06)  (108.30)  (107.76)  (120.35)

Experience adjustment on plan assets  73.83  (21.90)  68.19  -    -   
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities  58.18  (3.83)  13.06  -    -   
Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
Defined benefit obligation  157.68  134.64  121.21  114.56  105.37 

Plan assets  -    -    -    -    -   

Surplus / (Deficit)  (157.68) (134.64) (121.21) (114.56) (105.37)

Experience adjustment on plan assets  -    -    -    -    -   
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities  83.62 1.15 0.62  -    -   

Provident and Other Funds 2014-15 2013-14

Superannuation Contributory Fund with LIC  81.76  84.95 

a) The expected return on plan assets has been determined considering several applicable factors mainly the  
composition of plan assets held, associated risks of assets management, historical results of returns and policies for plan 
assets.

b) The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority,  
promotions and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

c) Based on the Guidance Note from the Institute of Actuaries of India, the Company’s Actuary has reliably measured 
the provident fund liability in respect of Provident Fund (Trust) and there is no shortfall.

d) Defined Contribution Plan - Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds aggregating to ` 470.23 lacs 
(Previous year ` 439.31 lacs) has been included under Note 24 - Employee bebefit expense.

e) The Voluntary Retirement payments made during the year amounting to ` 115.93 lacs (Previous year ` 218.01 lacs) are 
charged off in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Notes to financial statements

38 Related Party Disclosures
(A) Related Parties

(i) Holding Company (iv) Fellow Subsidiary Companies :
Bengal & Assam Co. Ltd.         LVP Foods Pvt. Ltd.

(ii) Subsidiary Companies :         Panchmahal Properties Ltd. 
Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd. (SSPL)         Hifazat Chemicals Ltd. 
Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd. (MCYSL)
BMF Investments Ltd. (v) Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Acorn Engineering Ltd.  (AEL) Shri Vikrampati Singhania
Divyashree Company Private Ltd. (DCPL) Managing Director

(iii) Associates : PSV Energy Pvt Ltd. (PSVEPL) Shri Nagaraju Srirama
Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. (DEL) President & Director

(vi) Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence : JK Tyres & Industries Limited

(B) Transactions carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business : ` in lacs
Nature of Transactions 2014-15 2013-14

Subsidiary Companies
Purchase of goods from MCYSL & SSPL 1630.68 1474.98 
Reimbursement for capital expenditure to DCPL 272.26 -
Sale of goods to MCYSL & SSPL 169.11 187.78   
Other expenses - DCPL & SSPL 82.21  49.16
Interest received from DCPL - 19.27 
Net Share Application money paid to / (received) from DCPL  -    (200.00)

Associates
Investment (PSVEPL & DEL)  100.00  5.20 
Purchase of Goods (PSVEPL) 13.23  -   

Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Sale of goods 4.92 3.20 
Rent Received 2021.26 2021.26 
Interest paid 934.87 1007.79 
Other expenses 134.71 127.08 
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RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(C) Outstanding balances

Amount receivable / (payable)
To Subsidiary Companies - (SSPL & MCYSL) (196.41) (140.16)
From Subsidiary Companies - (AEL & DCPL) 36.35 55.50 
From Associates - (PSVEPL)  1.91  -   
Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence (9347.69) (10148.48)

Remuneration to Managing Director ` 304.73 lacs (Previous Year ` 278.54 lacs) and President & Director ` 120.75 lacs 
(Previous Year ` 129.02 lacs).

` in lacs
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

39 Work in Progress :
Compounds 57.61 50.24 

Semi-finished 335.97 214.93

Others 68.63 31.42
462.21 296.59

2014-15 2013-14
40 (I) a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Consultancy and Professional fees 40.75 22.59 

Interest 9.23 28.44 

Others 93.47 55.12

b) CIF Value of Imports
Raw Materials and Components 5451.88 5563.88 

Stores and Spares 27.69 56.71 

Capital Goods 222.23 69.80 

c) Dividend remitted in Foreign Currency
Dividend in Foreign Currency 61.68 38.55 

Year to which dividend relates  2013-14 & 
2014-15 

 2012-13 & 
2013-14 

Number of Non-resident Shareholders 1 1 

Number of Shares 154200 154200 

(II) Earnings in Foreign Currency on account of FOB Value of Exports 6459.47 5797.11 

41 Earnings Per Share
Profit after Tax  (` In lacs)  4,195.77  3,860.23 
Weighted average number of equity shares 2483066 2483066

Basic and Diluted  Earnings per equity share  
     (Face Value of ` 10 each)

Cash ` 280.14 ` 266.01 
After Tax ` 168.98 ` 155.46 

42 The provision for current tax represents income tax payable computed under substantive provisions of the Income 
tax Act, 1961.

43 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.

Notes to financial statements
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RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

A Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax  5,419.51  5,189.01 

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expenses  3,089.07  2,955.69 

Transferred from Revaluation Reserve  (48.31)  (44.79)

Finance cost (Net of interest income)  3,612.63  3,767.34 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Assets  50.98  15.39 

Dividend Received  (395.67)  (638.95)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  11,728.21  11,243.69 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables  (1,253.90)  (437.11)

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and advances  (405.23)  372.27 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (745.01)  283.03 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets  23.81  20.79 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets  (59.04)  32.35 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables  1,379.82  1,635.24 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  80.18  (60.81)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities  82.39  (19.64)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other long term liabilities  (771.29) (1,005.32)

Cash generated from Operations  10,059.94  12,064.49 

Direct taxes (paid)  (1,686.86) (1,910.28)

Net Cash from Operating Activities  8,373.08  10,154.21 

B Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (2,334.84) (1,289.53)

Sale of Fixed Assets  39.39  44.31 

(Purchase) / Sale  of Investment (Net)  (100.00)  (405.02)

Dividend Received  395.67  638.95 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities  (1,999.78) (1,011.29)

C Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds of Borrowings  2,500.00  1,669.00 

Repayment of Borrowings  (3,592.83) (4,207.97)

Interest paid (Net)  (3,611.78) (3,779.59)

Increase /(Decrease) in Cash Credit and Public Deposits  (445.21) (2,073.02)

Dividend paid (Including dividend tax)  (1,180.64)  (705.73)

Net cash used in Financing Activities  (6,330.46) (9,097.31)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Bank balances  42.84  45.61 

Cash and Bank balances as at the beginning of the year  517.68  472.07 

Cash and Bank balances as at the end of the year  560.52  517.68 

Notes : 1) Figures in brackets are outflows.
2) Cash and Bank balances comprise of :
(a)  Cash on hand  5.69  3.65 

(b)  Balances with banks -  Current accounts  379.13  324.21 

Savings accounts  0.03  0.03 

Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend  9.29  1.29 

Fixed deposit account-Margin money  150.71  166.72 

-Others  15.67  21.78 

Total Cash and Bank balances  560.52  517.68 

` in Lacs
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Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of J. K. Fenner (India) Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), 
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for 
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the preparation of these consolidated 
financial statements in terms of the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows of the 
Group in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities, the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account 
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 

standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) 
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the 
Holding Company has an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of the accounting estimates made by the Holding 
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and 
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in 
terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) 
of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2015, and 
its consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF J. K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
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Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention regarding non provision for diminution 
in the value of certain long term investments in one of the 
subsidiary company namely BMF Investments Limited, 
since in the opinion of management, such diminution in 
their value is temporary in nature.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of three 
subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets 
of ̀  8463.20 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2015, total revenues of 
` 122.91 Lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to ` 27.69 
Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in 
the consolidated financial statements. These financial 
statements have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us by the Management 
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, 
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in 
terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, 
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and 
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 
the other auditors and the financial statements certified by 
the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)  
Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central  
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) 
of Section 143 of the Act, based on the comments  
in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company  
and subsidiary companies incorporated in India,  
we give in the Annexure a statement on the  
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the  
Order, to the extent applicable.

2)  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we  
report, to the extent applicable, that:
(a)  We have sought and obtained all the 

information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books and the reports of the 
other auditors;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated  
financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
31st March, 2015 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors of the Holding Company and the 
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India, none of the 
directors of the Group companies incorporated 
in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act; and

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:
i) The consolidated financial statements 

disclose the impact of pending litigations 
on the consolidated financial position ofthe 
Group - Refer Note 29 to the consolidated 
financial statements;

ii) The Group did not have any material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts; and

iii) There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Regn. No. 000756N
 Arun K. Tulsian 
Place: New Delhi Partner 
Date:  13th May 2015 Membership No. 089907
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ANNEXURE TO THE CONSOLIDATED AUDIT REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 of report on Other Legal 

and Regulatory requirements paragraph of our report 

on the consolidated financial statement of even date.

1. (a) The Group has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of fixed assets.

 (b) The fixed assets are physically verified by 
the management according to a phased 
programme designed to cover all the items over 
a period of three years, which in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Group and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to 
the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has 
been physically verified by the management 
during the year and no material discrepancies 

were noticed on such verification.

 (c) In case of two subsidiaries there are no fixed 
assets during the year, therefore the provisions 

on clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable.

2. (a) The inventories of the Group have been physically 

verified by the management during the year.
 (b) In our opinion and according to the information 

and explanations given to us, the procedures 
of physical verification of inventories followed 
by the management are reasonable and 
adequate in relation to the size of the Group 
and the nature of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Group is maintaining 
proper records of inventories. As explained to us, 
the discrepancies noticed on verification between 
the physical stocks and the book records were not 
material and have been properly dealt with in the 
books of account.

 (d) In case of three subsidiary companies they do 

not have any inventory during the year, therefore 

the provisions on clause 3(ii) of the Order are not 

applicable.

3. The Group has not granted any loans, secured or 

unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties 

covered in the register maintained under section 

189 of the Act. Accordingly, clauses 3 (iii) (a) and (b) 

of the Order are not applicable.

4. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there seem to be adequate internal 
control systems commensurate with the size 
of the Group and the nature of its business for 
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and 
for the sale of goods and services. Further, on 
the basis of our examination of the books and 
records of the Group carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices 
in India and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, we have neither come 
across nor have been informed of any instance of 
a continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in 
the aforesaid internal control systems.

5. In our opinion and according to explanations given 
to us, the Group (other than companies which have 
not accepted any deposits from the public) has 
complied with the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 
Rules framed thereunder with regard to deposits 
accepted from the public. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no order 
has been passed by the Company Law Board or 
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of 
India or any Court or other Tribunal in this regard.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
relating to materials, labour and other items of cost 
maintained by the Group (other than companies 
which are not required to maintain such books of 
account) as specified by the Central Government of 
India under section 148(1) of the Act, and are of the 
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained. 
We are, however, not required to make a detailed 
examination of such records.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and the records of the Group examined 
by us, in our opinion, the group is generally regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect 
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, 
customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material  
statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate 
authorities. Further, there were no undisputed 
amounts outstanding at the year end for a period 
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of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us and as per the books and records 
examined by us, there are no dues of Wealth 
Tax, Customs Duty and Cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any dispute, 
except the following in respect of disputed 
income Tax, Sales Tax, Excise Duty and Service Ta 
along with the forum where dispute is pending: 

 The Group has transferred the amount required 
to be transferred to investor education and 
protection fund in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 
(1 of 1956) and Rules made thereunder within 
time as applicable.

8. The Group does not have any accumulated losses 
at the end of the financial year. The Group has 
not incurred cash losses in the current financial 
year and in the immediately preceding financial 
year. In the case of two subsidiary companies, 
they have incurred cash losses in the current 
financial year namely BMF Investments limited 
and Southern Spinners and Processors limited 
and in the case of two Subsidiaries companies, 
they have incurred cash losses in the immediately 
preceding financial year namely Modren Cotton 
Yarn Spinners limited and Southern Spinners and 
Processors limited.

9. According to the records of the Group examined 
by us and the information and explanations 
given to us, in our opinion, the Group has not 
defaulted in repayment of its dues to banks and 
financial institutions. The Group does not have any 
debentures.

10. As per the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records, the 
Group has not given any guarantee for loans taken by 
others from banks or financial institutions.

11. As per the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records, 
in our opinion, the term loans taken by the Group 
have been applied for the purpose for which they 
were obtained, where such end use is stipulated by 
the lender(s).

12 During the course of our examination of the books 
and records of the Group carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in 
India, we have neither come across any instance 
of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of such 
case by the management.

For  S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 000756N
 Arun K. Tulsian 
Place: New Delhi Partner 
Date:  13th May 2015 Membership No. 089907

Name of 
the Statute

Nature of 
Dues

Amount 
(`.in Lacs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum  Where 
the dispute is 

pending 

In the Case of Holding Company (namely J.K. FENNER (INDIA) Ltd.)
Central 
Excise Act, 
1944

Excise 
Duty

58.88 1996 – 97, 
1998-99 to 

2001 – 2002, 
April to 

December, 
2002, 

2003–04 and 
2005–06

Commissioner 
Appeals, Meerut, 
Uttar Pradesh

Finance 
Act, 1994

Service 
Tax

34.79 2006-07 to 
May 2012 & 
March 2008 
to Aug 2012

CESTAT, Chennai, 
Tamil Nadu

Central 
Sales Tax 
Act & Sales 
Tax Act 
of Various 
States

Sales Tax 38.15 1992 – 93 to 
2005 – 06

Commercial  
Tax officer,  
Tamil Nadu

Sales Tax 183.69 2000 – 01 to 
2007 – 08

Dy. And Asst. 
Commissioner 
(Appeals),  
Tamil Nadu

Sales Tax 238.99 1991 – 92 to 
2004 – 05

Sales Tax Tribunal,
Tamil Nadu

Sales Tax 126.98 1991 – 92 to 
2004 – 05

Sales Tax Tribunal,
Moradabad, 
Uttar Pradesh

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

333.57 Assessment 
Year 2012-13

Commissioner 
of Income 
Tax (Appeals), 
Madurai,  
Tamil Nadu

In the Case of Subsidiary Company (namely Modern Cotton Yarn 
Spinners Limited)

Central 
Sales Tax 
Act & 
Sales Tax 
Act of 
Various 
States

Sales Tax 39.97 2006-07 to 
2013-14

Commercial Tax 
Officer,  
Tamil Nadu
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J.K. Fenner (India) Ltd. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015

` in lacs

Note No.
As at 

31.03.2015
As at 

31.03.2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds

Share capital 2  248.31  248.31 
Reserves and surplus 3  42,602.29  39,861.40 

 42,850.60  40,109.71 
    Minority Interest  755.47  744.96 
Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term borrowings 4  9,274.84  13,229.46 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5  885.54  1,467.30 
Other long term liabilities 6  10,570.82  11,342.11 
Long term provisions 7  151.54  127.84 

 20,882.74  26,166.71 
Current Liabilities

Short-term borrowings 8  12,987.88  9,106.37 
Trade payables 9  7,034.65  5,759.82 
Other current liabilities 10  9,290.32  9,651.20 
Short-term provisions 11  410.23  487.01 

 29,723.08  25,004.40 
Total  94,211.89  92,025.78 

ASSETS
Goodwill on Consolidation of Subsidiaries  8,001.69  8,001.69 
Non-current assets

Fixed assets 12
     Tangible assets  29,935.80  32,132.87 
     Intangible assets  221.19  234.65 
     Capital work-in-progress  946.04  446.48 
     Intangible assets under development  0.86  4.30 

 31,103.89  32,818.30 
Non-current investments 13  28,871.17  27,831.30 
Long term loans and advances 14  1,757.95  885.46 
Other non-current assets  1,135.91  1,076.87 

 62,868.92  62,611.93 
Current assets

Inventories 15  5,647.27  4,789.43 
Trade receivables 16  12,679.75  11,286.53 
Cash and Bank Balances 17  637.23  542.42 
Short-term loans and advances 18  4,359.37  4,771.58 
Other current assets 19  17.66  22.20 

 23,341.28  21,412.16 
Total  94,211.89  92,025.78 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

 RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

 ` in lacs

Note No 2014-15 2013-14
 REVENUE:

Revenue from operations (Gross) 20  63,413.01  65,653.77 

Less:Excise duty       5,771.11  5,628.66 

Revenue from operations (Net)  57,641.90  60,025.11 

Other income 21  2,597.07  3,101.29 

Total Revenue (I)  60,238.97  63,126.40 

EXPENSES:

Cost of materials consumed 22  22,924.45  23,417.70 

Purchase of stock-in-trade  3,691.70  6,239.22 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories of finished goods,  
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 23  (475.06)  (253.19)

Employee benefit expenses 24  8,803.26  8,541.13 

Other expenses 25  12,750.58  12,716.77 

Total  Expenses (II)  47,694.93  50,661.63 

Profit before interest & depreciation (I-II)  12,544.04  12,464.77 

Finance costs 26  3,938.54  4,074.82 

Profit before depreciation  8,605.50  8,389.95 

Depreciation and amortization expense 27  3,195.87  3,115.24 

Profit before tax  5,409.63  5,274.71 

Tax expense:

Current tax  1,382.40  1,057.34 

Income tax adjustments for earlier year  0.10  (0.04)

Add: MAT credit entitlement [ Charge / (Credit) ]  129.22  490.64 

Deferred tax 5  (384.20)  (213.84)

Profit for the period before adjustment for minority interest  4,282.11  3,940.61 

Minority Interest  10.51  3.00 

Profit after tax  4,271.60  3,937.61 

Basic / Diluted Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value per share ` 10 (2013-14 ` 10)

Cash  ` 285.26  ` 275.43 

After Tax  ` 172.03  ` 158.58 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

 RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015
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1 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

 a.  The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of JK Fenner (India) 

Limited (“the Company”) and Financial Statements of the following (incorporated in India) as on 

31.03.2015:-.

Subsidiaries:

Sl. 

No

Name of the Company Shareholding

1 Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd. 100%

2 Southern Spinners & Processors Ltd. 100%

3 Acorn Engineering Ltd. 100%

4 BMF Investments Ltd. 100%

5 Divyashree Company Pvt. Ltd. 61%

 b.  The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-by-line 

basis by adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after 

eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.

 c.  In case of Associates, where Company holds directly or indirectly through subsidiaries 20% or 

more equity or / and exercises significant influence, investments are accounted for by using 

equity method in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) - 23 “ Accounting for Investments 

in Consolidated Financial Statements”.

 d  The difference between the cost of investment and the share of net assets at the time of 

acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or 

Capital Reserve as the case may be.

 e.  The Accounting Policies of the Company and its Subsidiaries are largely similar. However, few 

Accounting Policies differ than the policies followed by the Company. Management is of the view 

that overall impact of the same on these Consolidated Financial Statements will not be material.

 f. Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts of the financial statements of the Company  

  and its subsidiaries are set out in their respective financial statements.

 g.  The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies, 

in accordance with the generally accepted accounting practices.

 h.  Figures pertaining to the subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever considered 

necessary to bring them in line with the Company’s financial statements. 

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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2

 
SHARE CAPITAL 

 
 As at 

31.03.2015

` in lacs 
As at 

31.03.2014

Authorised:
8,00,00,000 (Previous year 8,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each 8,000.00 8,000.00

  10,00,000 (Previous year 10,00,000) preference shares of ` 100/-each 1,000.00 1,000.00

9,000.00 9,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid (Equity Shares with equal rights)
24,83,066 (Previous year 24,83,066) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up 248.31 248.31

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 2,483,066 2,483,066

Additions during the year - -

Deletions during the year - -

Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 2,483,066 2,483,066

b) Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Bengal & Assam Company Limited - Holding Company 2,189,314 2,189,314

Henry F. Cockill & Sons Ltd, U.K. 154,200 154,200

c) Aggregate number of Equity shares allotted to shareholders as fully paid up pursuant to 
Scheme of amalgamation without payment being received in cash on 7th November 2007. 2,313,000 2,313,000

Above includes shares allotted to holding company 2,097,522 2,097,522

3  RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

a)  Capital Reserve  343.18  343.18 

b)  Capital Redemption Reserve  77.10  77.10 

c)  Securities Premium Reserve  1,285.62  1,285.62 

d)  Revaluation Reserve

   Balance as at the beginning of the year  934.79  981.93 

   Less : Amount transferred  (i)  57.33  47.14 

   Balance as at the end of the year  877.46  934.79 

e)  Reserve (as per RBI Guidelines)

   Balance as at the beginning of the year  186.43  131.65 

   Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  -    54.78 

   Balance as at the end of the year  186.43  186.43 

f)   General Reserve

   Balance as at the beginning of the year  35,183.08  32,683.08 

   Less : Unamortised carrying value of fixed assets at the end of useful life adjusted  (ii)  429.63  -   

     Add :Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  2,500.00  2,500.00 

     Balance as at the end of the year  37,253.45  35,183.08 

g)   Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  2,579.05  1,851.20 

Total Reserves & Surplus   (a to g)  42,602.29  39,861.40 

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

` in lacs

 As at 
31.03.2015

As at 
31.03.2014

Details of Surplus in Statemant of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,851.20  1,464.61 
Profit for the year  4,271.60  3,937.61 
Transfer to Reserve (as per RBI Guidelines)  -    (54.78)

 6,122.80  5,347.44 
Less: Appropriations

Interim dividend paid  620.77  496.61 
Proposed final dividend  248.31  372.46 
Corporate Dividend tax  174.67  127.17 
Transfer to General Reserve  2,500.00  2,500.00 

 2,579.05  1,851.20 

 (i) 

(ii)

Transfer to Profit and Loss Statement ` 48.31 lacs (Previous year ` 44.79 lacs) towards additional depreciation arising 
out of revaluation of Fixed Assets, ` 2.23 lacs (Previous year ` 2.35 lacs) towards assets sold / written off  and ` 6.79 lacs 
written off in respect of assets whose residual life has become zero in line with adjustment made in the carrrying amount 
on the basis of historical cost.

A sum of ` 429.63 lacs adjusted to General Reserve pursuant to adoption of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 
towards written down value in respect of certain fixed assets net of deferred tax of ` 197.56 lacs whose lives had 
expired on 31st March 2014.

` in lacs
 Non - Current Current *
 As at  

31.03.2015 
 As at  

31.03.2014 
 As at  

31.03.2015 
 As at  

31.03.2014 

4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED

Term Loans

Banks  8,023.75  7,388.75  1,865.00  2,830.00 

Financial Institutions  500.00  4,100.00  1,600.00  1,600.00 

 8,523.75  11,488.75  3,465.00  4,430.00 

UNSECURED

Fixed Deposits  751.09  1,240.71  750.82  412.60 

others  -    500.00  500.00  -   
751.09 1740.71 1250.82 412.60

Less :  Amount disclosed under the head  
"Other Current Liabilities" (Note 10)  -    -    (4,715.82)  (4,842.60)

 9,274.84  13,229.46  -    -   

 * Payable during next 12 months

5 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

    Related to Fixed Assets (Refer Note 3 (ii))  1,914.39  2,406.29 

Deferred Tax Assets 
    Unabsorbed Losses and depreciation under Income tax  899.52  826.96 

    Expenses / Provisions Allowable  129.33  112.03 

 885.54  1,467.30 
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` in lacs
As at  

31.03.2015 
 As at  

31.03.2014 

6 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
Trade Deposits  1,177.49  1,167.51 
Deferred Payment Liabilities (Refer Note 32)  8,485.68  9,339.43 
Others  907.65  835.17 

7 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS 
10,570,82 11,342.11

Provisions for employee benefits  151.54  127.84 

8 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 
SECURED
  Working Capital Borrowings from Banks  7,356.06  7,092.08 
UNSECURED
  From Banks  4,704.52  1,867.34 
  Fixed Deposits  27.30  146.95 
  Others  900.00  -   

 12,987.88  9,106.37 

9 TRADE PAYABLES

Other payables (Refer Note 31)  7,034.65  5,759.82 

10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
CURRENT MATURITIES OF LONG TERM DEBTS
SECURED

Term Loans from Banks  1,865.00  2,830.00 
Financial Institutions  1,600.00  1,600.00 
UNSECURED
Fixed Deposits  750.82  412.60 

Others  500.00  -   

4715.82 4842.60

OTHERS
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  7.43  1.99 

Interest accrued and due on deposits  12.51  11.60 

Rent Advance  93.33  93.33 

Unclaimed dividend #  24.04  16.04 

Unclaimed fixed deposits and interest accrued thereon #  54.42  57.37 
Other payables - Capital payables  118.32  44.24 

Employees  1,028.50  995.32 
Deferred Payment Liabilities (Refer Note 32)  853.75  800.76 
Statutory dues  552.97  469.44 

Others  1,829.23  2,318.51 

 4,574.50  4,808.60 

 9,290.32  9,651.20 

  #   Investor Education & Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.

11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 

Provisions for employee benefits

Gratuity  91.86  34.16 

Leave encashment  19.51  17.09 

Other Provisions - Equity dividend  248.31  372.46 
Corporate tax on dividend  50.55  63.30 

 410.23  487.01 
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12 FIXED ASSETS
` in lacs

Assets

Gross Value Depreciation / Lease Amortisation Net Value

As at Additions Sales / As at Up to For the Deletions/ Up to As at As at

1-4-2014 Adjustments 31-3-2015 31-3-2014 year** Adjustments 31-3-2015 31-3-2015 31-3-2014

Tangible Assets

Land 

 Freehold  4,571.27  -  -  4,571.27  -  -  -  -  4,571.27  4,571.27 

 Leasehold  132.60  -  -  132.60  10.37  1.32  -  11.69  120.91  122.23 

Buildings  5,286.31  220.08  4.42  5,501.97  1,247.95  387.11  1.15  1,633.91  3,868.06  4,038.36 

Plant and Equipment *  37,712.34  1,221.72  340.02  38,594.04  15,248.01  3,036.73  277.96  18,006.78  20,587.26  22,464.33 

Furniture and Fixtures  932.21  56.25  20.36  968.10  476.98  181.38  11.77  646.59  321.51  455.23 

Vehicles  313.35  59.97  47.96  325.36  108.96  49.70  27.47  131.19  194.17  204.39 

Office equipment  1,000.59  121.26  6.19  1,115.66  723.53  125.01  5.50  843.04  272.62  277.06 

 Total  49,948.67  1,679.28  418.95  51,209.00  17,815.80  3,781.25  323.85  21,273.20  29,935.80  32,132.87 

 Intangible Assets       

 Software  535.84  83.44  -    619.28  319.23  80.00  -    399.23  220.05  216.61 

 Trade Mark Licence  501.35  -    -    501.35  483.31  16.90  -    500.21  1.14  18.04 

 Total  1,037.19  83.44  -    1,120.63  802.54  96.90  -    899.44  221.19  234.65 

 Grand Total  50,985.86  1,762.72  418.95  52,329.63  18,618.34  3,878.15  323.85  22,172.64  30,156.99  32,367.52 

 Previous Year  49,937.27  1,353.60  305.01  50,985.86  15,690.79  3,160.03  232.48  18,618.34  32,367.52  34,246.48 

* Includes certain equipments ` 10200 lacs (Previous year ` 10200 lacs) given on lease. (Refer Note 30) 

** Pursuant to adoption of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, the lives of certain assets had expired on 31st March 
2014. The carrying amount of ` 633.98 lacs inclusive of ` 6.79 lacs of upward revision on account of revaluation in 
respect of such fixed assets has been adjusted to Reserves.

a)  Land, buildings and plant & machinery transferred under the Scheme of Amalgamation during the year 2006-07 were 
revalued as at 31st August 1985 and as at 31st March 1995. The revaluation in respect of factory, service buildings and 
plant and machinery was further updated as at 31st March 1998 based on current replacement cost by a valuer and 
as a result, book value of the said assets had been increased by ` 2990.53 lacs.   

b) Includes capitalisation of finance cost - Plant and Machinery Nil (Previous year ` 14.23 lacs).

` in lacs

 As at  
31.03.2015 

 As at  
31.03.2014

13 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
Long Term Investment
Quoted
Equity  26,761.66 25,463.93 

Mutual Funds  8.10  7.62 

Unquoted
Equity  603.35  559.58 

Preference Shares  200.00  250.00 

Associates*  1,132.69  1,032.69 

Mutual Funds  165.37  209.71 

Others - Warrants  -    307.77 

 28,871.17 27,831.30 

 * Share of profits has not been recognised in carrying amout of investment in associates being not material in value. 

Notes to consolidated financial statements



55

` in lacs

 As at  
31.03.2015 

 As at  
31.03.2014

14  LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances  197.09  264.25 

MAT Credit entitlement  -    129.22 

Security deposits with Govt. Authorities & Others  1,560.86  491.99 

 1,757.95  885.46 

15  INVENTORIES 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Raw materials #  1,517.68  1,234.13 

Work-in-progress  586.74  411.12 

Finished goods  2,980.37  2,561.41 

Stock - in - Trade  344.87  356.77 

Stores and spares  217.61  226.00 

 5,647.27  4,789.43 

# Includes Raw materials in transit ` 187.74 lacs (Previous year ` 56.02 lacs)

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES 
(Unsecured)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from  
the date they are due for payment

Considered Good  707.96  712.85 

Doubtful  30.37  25.35 

Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts  (30.37)  (25.35)

 Others (Considered good)  11,971.79 10,573.68
 12,679.75 11,286.53 

17 CASH & BANK BALANCES 
Cash on hand  9.57  5.11 

Balances with banks

        Current accounts  420.31  344.46 

        Savings accounts  0.03  0.03 

        Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend  9.29  1.29 

        Fixed deposit account

Margin money  182.36  169.75 

Others  15.67  21.78 

 637.23  542.42 

Unpaid dividend of `15.67 lacs (Previous year ` 14.75 lacs) kept in the form of fixed deposit with banks.

18 SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 
(Unsecured, considered good)

Balance with Excise & Sales tax authorities  2,120.03  1,850.92 

Export Benefit Receivable  144.02  269.96 

Advance Income-tax (Net of Provision ` 1235.12 lacs-Previous year ` 1198.90 lacs)  1,782.22  1,462.98 

Other advances  313.10  1,187.72 

 4,359.37  4,771.58 

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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` in lacs

As at  
31.03.2015 

As at  
31.03.2014

19 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

(Unsecured, considered good)

Excise Duty Receivable  -    12.00 

Other receivables  17.66  10.20 

 17.66  22.20 

2014-15 2013-14

20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sale of Products and Services  62,837.74  64,536.93 

Interest on Loans & Deposits  13.14  84.99 

Other Financial Services

Dividend from Shares  60.48  74.20 

Profit on Sale of Long Term Investments  10.91  367.87 

Other operating revenues  490.74  589.78 

 63,413.01  65,653.77 

21 OTHER INCOME 

Interest income from short-term deposits and loans  36.52  74.40 

Dividend income from long term investments  396.15  639.44 

Profit on Sale of Assets (Net)  -    5.64 

Profit on Sale of Non-Current Investments  1.75  8.85 

Other non operating income

Exchange Difference (Net)  13.52  -   

Lease Rent Received  2,041.60  2,054.14 

Others  107.53  318.82 

 2,597.07  3,101.29 

22 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Rubber  5,358.11  5,786.72 

Chemicals  3,729.93  3,613.90 

Cord / Fabric  2,215.36  1,850.61 

Cotton  4,725.09  5,400.34 

  Components and Others (Refer Note 30 (b))  6,895.96  6,766.13 

  22,924.45  23,417.70 

% of Imported / Indigenous materials consumed 

Imported     -    (value)  5,429.97  5,341.44 

                             (%) 23.7% 22.8%

 Indigenous  -  (value)  17,494.48  18,076.26 

                            (%) 76.3% 77.2%

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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` in lacs

 2014-15  2013-14 

23 (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Closing stock  3,911.99  3,329.30 
Opening stock  3,329.30  3,097.56 

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Stock  (582.69)  (231.74)

Differential Excise Duty on Increase / Decrease of Finished Goods  107.63  (21.45)

Total (Increase) / Decrease in Stock  (475.06)  (253.19)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 
Salary, Wages and Bonus  7,686.09  7,471.86 

Contribution to Provident and other funds  555.16  513.72 

Employees welfare expenses & Other Benefits  562.01  555.55 
 8,803.26  8,541.13 

25 OTHER EXPENSES 
Consumption of stores, packing and spare parts  2,643.88   2,408.35 

Power & Fuel  3,051.31  3,431.65 

Repairs to Buildings  190.00  80.69 

Repairs to Machinery  690.91   570.70 

Freight & Transportation  1,020.70   1,128.24 

Rent  213.57   216.13 

Insurance  123.80   142.69 

Rates & Taxes  232.76   199.12 

Travelling Expenses  1,282.48  1,243.64 

Exchange Difference (Net)  8.14  161.48 

Loss on Sale of Investments  -    203.23 

Loss on Assets Sold / Scrapped (Net)  42.00  -   

Corporate Social Responsibility  32.33  -   

Miscellaneous Expenses  3,218.70  2,930.85 
 12,750.58  12,716.77 

a) Stores & spares consumed
 Imported   -  (value)  44.31   69.70

                          (%)  1.68%    2.89%   

 Indigenous -   (value)  2,599.57  2,338.65 

                       (%) 98.32% 97.11%

b) Miscellaneous Expenses include
(i) Payment to Auditors - Audit Fee  7.85  6.86 

Tax Audit Fee  1.31  1.06 
Other Services (Certification fees)  0.57  0.33 

Reimbursement of Expenses  2.87  2.77 
 12.60  11.02 

(ii) Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  15.54  36.10 

26  FINANCE COST 
Interest  3,859.21  3,520.67 
Other borrowing costs  55.19  34.55 
Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions  24.14  519.60 

 3,938.54  4,074.82

27 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES  
Depreciation on tangible assets 3,150.17 3,025.04 

Amortization of intangible assets  94.01  134.99 

3,244.18 3,160.03 

Less:Transfer from revaluation reserve  48.31  44.79 
3,195.87 3,115.24 

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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28 Capital Commitments (Net of advances) ` 231.16 lacs (Previous year ` 425.05 lacs) and Other Commitments Nil 
(Previous year ` 1018.97 lacs).

29 Contingent liabilities in respect of claims not accepted and not provided for ` 986.27 lacs (Previous year `1274.67 lacs).
Details thereof are, Excise duty matters in appeal ̀  154.10 lacs, Service tax matters in appeal ̀  49.96 lacs, Sales tax matters 
in appeal ` 520.73 lacs and other matters ` 261.48 lacs (Previous year ` 141.07 lacs, ` 43.56 lacs, ` 527.71 lacs & ` 562.33 
lacs respectively). In respect of certain disallowances and additions made by the Income tax Authorities, appeals are 
pending before the Appellate Authorities and adjustment, if any, will be made after the same are finally settled. 

30 The Company has given certain specified equipments to a related party on operating lease basis which is cancelable 
at the option of Lessee.

31 The details of amounts outstanding under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED 
Act) to the extent of information available with the Company are as under:

(i)   Principal & Interest amount due and remaining unpaid as at 31.03.2015  Nil (Previous year Nil)

(ii) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year  Nil  (Previous year Nil) and

(iii)  Interest Accrued and unpaid as at 31.03.2015  Nil  (Previous year Nil)

32 Deferred Payment liabilities represent amount payable to a related party against certain equipments.

33 The Company has not provided diminution in the value of certain long term strategic investments, since in the opinion 
of the Board, such diminution in their value is temporary in nature, considering the inherent value, nature of investments, 
the investees’ assets and expected future cash flow from such investments.

34 The Voluntary Retirement payments made during the year amounting to ` 115.93 lacs (Previous year ` 218.01 lacs) are 
charged off in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

35  Segment information:

(A) Information about Business Segments (Primary Segments) :

Particulars  Business Segment 
 Total 

Investment Polymer Cotton-Yarn Others

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

A REVENUE

1 Gross Revenue 
(External)

 85  527  57,040  56,024  8,671  12,033  36  3  65,832  68,588 

Less: Inter Segment  -    -    600  638  1,783  2,292  36  3  2,419  2,934 

Total revenue  85  527  56,440  55,386  6,888  9,741  -    -    63,413  65,654 

2 Other Income  396  643  2,186  2,410  13  39  2  9  2,597  3,101 

3 Total Revenue  480  1,170  58,626  57,796  6,902  9,780  2  9  66,010  68,755 

B RESULTS

1 Segment Result (PBIT)  480  965  8,663  8,382  169  (9)  36  11  9,348  9,349 

2 Interest Expense (Net)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    3,939  4,075 

3 Profit Before Tax  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    5,409  5,274 

4a Provision for Current Tax  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,383  1,057 

4b Deferred Tax (NET)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (384)  (214)

4c Minimum Alternate Tax 
Credit entitlement  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    129  491 

 5 Profit after Tax  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    4,282  3,940 

C Other Information:

1 Segment Assets  36,996  35,997  49,775  48,579  3,896  3,915  1,945  2,193  92,612  90,685 

2 Segment Liabilities  -    -    45,420  46,385  (437)  (428)  -    -    44,983  45,957 

3 Capital Expenditure  -    -    2,338  1,291  125  19  272  272  2,735  1,582 

4 Depreciation and 
Amortization expenses  -    -    3,041  2,911  155  204  -    -    3,196  3,115 
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(B) Information about Geographical Segments (Secondary Segments):

Particulars
Domestic Overseas Total

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
1 Gross Sales less inter segment 56,971 57,221 8,861 11,366 65,832 68,588
2 Segment Assets 89,522 88,641  3,090  2,044 92,612 90,685

Notes :
Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segment)       
Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on “Segment Reporting” (AS-17) taking into account risks 
and returns of these Segments. The Company has identified four segments i.e. Polymer, Cotton-Yarn, Investments & Others and 
therefore reported accordingly.         

Secondary Segments Reporting (by Geographical Segments - Customer location)  

In respect of Secondary Segment Information, the Company has identified its Geographical Segments as (a) Domestic and  

(b) Overseas on the basis of location of customers.

36 Related Party Disclosures
(A) Related Parties

(i) Holding Company  (iii) Associates : (iv) Enterprise over which KMP

Bengal & Assam Co. Ltd. PSV Energy Pvt. Ltd. (PSVEPL) is able to exercise significant

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. (DEL) influence:

 (ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) : JK Tyre & Industries Limited

        Shri Vikrampati Singhania (iv) Fellow Subsidiary Companies :

            Managing Director     LVP Foods Pvt. Ltd.

        Shri Nagaraju Srirama     Panchmahal properties Ltd. 

            President & Director       Hifazat Chemicals Ltd.

(B) Transactions carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business :
` in lacs

Nature of Transactions 2014-15 2013-14
Holding Company
Purchase of Investments  -    2,007.39 
Inter Corporate Deposit received 900.00  500.00 
Refund of Inter Corporate Deposit  -    1,000.00 
Interest Received  -    84.99 
Interest Paid 84.56  1.97 
Associates
Investment made (PSVEPL & DEL) 100.00  5.20 
Purchase of goods (PSVEPL) 13.23  -   
Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence

Sale of goods 4.92 3.20 
Rent Received 2021.26 2021.26 
Interest paid 934.87 1007.79 
Other expenses 134.71 127.08 

(C) Outstanding balances 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Amount receivable / (payable) 
Holding Company 1400.00  500.00 
Associates 1.91  -   
Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence (9347.69) (10148.48)

Remuneration to Managing Director `304.73 lacs (Previous Year ` 278.54 lacs) and President & Director ` 120.75 lacs  
(Previous Year ` 129.02 lacs.)

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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37 Additional information

Sl. 
No.

Name of the entity Net Assets (i.e., total assets 
minus total liabilities)

Share in profit or loss

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount       
` in lacs

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or (loss)

Amount       
` in lacs

1 2 3 4 5 6

A Parent
J.K. Fenner (India) Limited 80.88% 34656.37 98.22% 4195.77

B Subsidiaries 

1 Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Limited 2.28% 976.07 2.54%  108.39 

2 Southern Spinners and Processors Limited 2.40% 1026.70 (1.15%)  (48.99)

3 Acorn Engineering Limited 0.02% 8.17 0.01%  0.35 

4 BMF Investments Limited 11.59% 4965.70 (0.01%)  (0.35)

5 Divyashree Company Private Limited 4.60% 1973.06 0.63%  26.94 

6 Minority Interest (1.76%)  (755.47) (0.25%)  (10.51)

C Associates (Investment as per the equity method)

1 Dwarkesh Energy Limited  -    -    -    -   

2 PSV Energy Private Limited  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL 100.00% 42850.60 100.00%  4,271.60 

` in lacs

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
38 Work in Progress :

Compounds 57.61 50.24 

Semi-finished 335.97 214.93 

Others 193.16 145.95 

586.74 411.12 

2014-15 2013-14
39 Earnings Per Share

  Profit after Tax (after adjusting for Minority Interest)  4,271.60  3,937.61 

  Weighted average number of equity shares 2483066 2483066

  Basic and Diluted  Earnings per equity share  

     (Face Value of ` 10 each)

      Cash ` 285.26 ` 275.43 

      After Tax ` 172.03 ` 158.58 

40

41

Figures pertaining to Subsidiary Companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them in line with the 
Parent Company’s Financial Statements.
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.

Notes to consolidated financial statements

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015
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` in lacs

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

A Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax  5,409.63  5,274.71 

Adjustments for :- Depreciation and amortization expenses  3,244.18  3,160.03 

Transferred from Revaluation Reserve  (48.31)  (44.79)

Finance cost (Net of interest income)  3,773.28  3,970.19 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Assets  42.00  (5.64)

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investments  (12.66)  (173.49)

Provisions against Standard assets  -    (2.50)

Dividend Received  (396.14)  (639.43)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  12,011.98  11,539.08 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables  (1,413.32)  1,731.90 

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and advances  (339.09)  501.10 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (857.84)  (134.12)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets  23.81  20.79 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets  (59.04)  32.35 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables  1,285.00  1,822.45 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  83.81  (62.47)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities  (45.12)  (123.01)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other long term liabilities  (771.29)  (1,005.32)

Cash generated from Operations  9,918.90  14,322.75 

Direct taxes (paid)  (1,701.75) (1,950.51)

Net Cash from Operating Activities  8,217.15  12,372.24 

B Cash flow from Investing Activities - Purchase of Fixed Assets  (2,461.21) (1,554.79)

Sale of Fixed Assets  322.89  75.81 

(Purchase) / Sale  of Investment (Net)  (1,027.20) (1,701.94)

Dividend Received  396.15  639.44 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities  (2,769.37) (2,541.48)

C Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds of Borrowings  3,400.00  2,369.00 

Repayment of Borrowings  (3,925.80) (4,207.97)

Interest paid (Net)  (3,772.43) (3,982.44)

Increase /(Decrease) in Cash Credit and Public Deposits  125.90 (2,927.00)

Share application money received / (Repaid)  -    (200.00)

Dividend paid (Including dividend tax)  (1,180.64)  (847.06)

Net cash used in Financing Activities  (5,352.97) (9,795.47)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Bank balances  94.81  35.29 

Cash and Bank balances as at the beginning of the year  542.42  507.13 

Cash and Bank balances as at the end of the year  637.23  542.42 

Notes : 1) Figures in brackets are outflows.

2) Cash and Bank balances comprise of - Cash on hand  9.57  5.11 

Balances with banks  - Current accounts  420.31  344.46 

Savings accounts  0.03  0.03 

Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend  9.29  1.29 

Fixed deposit account-Margin money  182.36  169.75 

                Others  15.67  21.78 

Total Cash and Bank balances  637.23  542.42 

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
Per our report attached Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.,   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
ARUN K. TULSIAN Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015
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Form AOC-I
Financial Information of Subsidiaries and associates companies

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of companies (Accounts) Rules , 2014)
Part “A”: Subsidiaries                                                                                                                                                                        ` in Lacs

Name of Subsidiaries

Particulars 
Modern Cotton 
Yarn Spinners 

Ltd

Southern 
Spinners and 
Processors Ltd

Acorn 
Engineering 

Ltd.

BMF Investments 
Ltd.

Divyashree 
Company 
Private Ltd.

Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A

Reporting Currency INR INR INR INR INR
Closing Exchange Rate N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Share Capital 305.00 505.00 5.05 30.20 1.17
Reserves & Surplus 407.86 981.32 2.77 4,935.51 1,935.89
Total Assets 2,521.87 2,925.93 8.21 6,462.28 1,992.72
Total Liabilities 2,521.87 2,925.93 8.21 6,462.28 1,992.72
Investments 2.03 3.12 8.10 6,354.28 58.48
Turnover 4,019.17 4,397.42 0.48 84.53 37.91
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 62.55 (106.97) 0.35 (0.58) 34.77
Provision for taxation (45.84) (57.98) -   (0.23) 7.83
Profit after taxation 108.39 (48.99) 0.35 (0.35) 26.94
Proposed Dividend -   -   -   -   -
% of Share holding 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 61.00

Notes    
1. Name of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operation - N.A.   
2. Names of Subsidiaries  which have been liquidated or sold during the year - N.A.

Part “B”: Associates
Statement pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associates

Name of Associates

Particulars PSV Energy Pvt.Ltd. Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2015 31.03.2015

Share of Associates held by the Company on the year end

No of Shares 52000 1374940 *

Amount of Investment in Associates 5.20 1127.49

Extent of Holding % 26.00% 34.16%

Description of how there is significant influence Holding > 20 % Holding > 20 %

Reason why the Associate is not consolidated N.A, due to 
accumulated losses

N.A, since the associate is yet to 
commence its operations.

Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet  5.10  1,127.73 

Profit/ Loss for the year - Considered  in consolidation  -    -   

- Not Considered in consolidation  -    -   

*Includes 1100,000 fully paid-up 7 % Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS) of `. 11 crore.

1. Associates  which are yet to commence operation -  Dwarkesh Energy Limited 

2. Associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year - N.A.

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA 
 Chairman HARSHPATI SINGHANIA
   BAKUL JAIN 
  MAMTA SINGHANIA
 VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA SURENDHRA MALHOTRA
 Managing Director NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
  Directors
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN  
Company Secretary  
New Delhi, the 13th May 2015  New Delhi, the13th May 2015
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